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MALANA POWER COMPANY LIMITED

The Board of Directors of the Company are pleased to present their Twenty-fourth Annual Report on
the business and operations of the Company and audited financial statements for the year ended

31t March, 2021 together with the Auditors' Report.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Rs. In Million

Standalone

Consolidated

Particulars For the financial year e T TR e
ended
315t March 315t March 315t March 315t March
2021 2020 2021 2020
Revenue from operations 734.80 925.56 2496.80 3265.53
Other Income 175.30 500.77 170.00 108.85
Total Revenue 910.1 1426.327 2666.80 3374.39
Operating and Administrative 379.21 369.498 1084.650 1068.773
Expenses
Operating Profit before Interest,
Depreciation & Tax 530.89 1,056.83 1,582.15 2,305.62
Depreciation & Amortization 45.295 44.012 583.87 648.411
Expenses
Profit/ (Loss) before finance
;‘;its and Exceptional Items and 485.60 1,012.82 998.28 1,657.20
Finance Costs 131.05 144.07 377.95 440.21
Exceptional Items - - - -
Profit/(Loss) before tax 354.55 868.75 620.33 1,217.00
Tax Expenses 129.98 259.38 178.90 321.96
Net Profit/(Loss) 224.57 609.37 441.43 895.04
Other Comprehensive Income 1.42 (2.31) 4.92 (9.02)
Total Comprehensive
Income/(Loss) net of tax 225.98 607.06 446.35 886.02
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Non-Controlling Interest - - 26.44 33.48
Total Comprehensive
Income/(Loss) for the year 225.98 607.06 419.91 852.54
Interim Dividend paid during the
year (206.54) - (206.54) -
Dividend Distribution Tax on
Interim Dividend - - - -
Surplus brought forward from
previous year 8,095.40 7,488.34 10,304.20 9,451.66
Balance available for
appropriation 19.45 607.06 213.37 852.54
Balance Carried to Balance
Sheet 8,114.84 8,095.40 10,517.57 10,304.20
Earnings Per Share (in Rs.)
') Basic 1.52 4.13 2.82 5.83
i) Diluted 1.52 4.13 2.82 5.83

OVERALL PERFORMANCE AND THE STATEMENTS OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY ARE AS UNDER:

Standalone financial performance:

The Company recorded revenue from operations of Rs. 734.80 million during the financial year
2020-21 as compared to Rs. 925.56 million in the previous financial year 2019-20. The other income
during the financial year 2020-21 was Rs.175.30 million vis-a-vis Rs. 500.77 million in the financial
year 2019-20, out of which Rs.139.43 million other income is attributable to the interest on sub-
debt provided to AD Hydro Power Limited (subsidiary company). Based on the request from the
subsidiary company given to AD Hydro Power Limited (ADHPL), the interest on part sub-debt of Rs.
3,178 million is waived off and on the remaining sub debt loan amount of Rs.1,460 million, interest
is charged at 9.55% p.a.

The Net profit during the financial year 2020-21 was at Rs. 224.57 million as compared to Rs.
609.37 million in the previous financial year. The lower profitability in FY 2020-21 is because of
reduced generation due to lower hydrology and lower realized tariff. The generation during the
financial year 2020-21 stood at 337.92 Million Kwh as compared to 367.93 Million kWh in the
previous year.
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Consolidated financial performance:

The key performance of your Company’s Consolidated Financial Statement for the Financial Year
2020-21 is as follows:

The Company recorded total consolidated revenue of Rs. 2,496.80 million during the financial year
2020-21 as compared to Rs. 3,265.53 million in the previous financial year. The consolidated Net
profit during the financial year 2020-21 was at Rs. 998.28 million as compared to Rs. 927.35 million
in the previous financial year. The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the
Company in accordance with the applicable Accounting Standards. The audited consolidated financial
statement together with Auditors’ Report is attached herewith and forms part of this Annual Report.

NOTE ON COVID-19

The World Health Organization (WHO) had officially declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a pandemic
in March 2020, after the disease caused by the new coronavirus spread to more than 100 countries
and led to tens of thousands of cases within a few months.

The Members may kindly take note that the Ministry of Home Affairs, Government of India had
issued Order No.40-3/2020 dated 24.03.2020, notifying electricity among the essential services in its
guidelines. This allowed power companies in India to operate during lock down in the crisis situation
of COVID-19, declared as pandemic by World Health Organization.

Therefore, MPCL Plant continued its operation at all times during lockdown period after complying
with the guidelines issued by the Central and State Govt. Also the Company also did not expect any
significant change in the accounting estimates as the Company continued to run its business and
operations as usual without any major disruptions. The Members may kindly take note of this.

2. PROJECT: BARA BHANGAL HEP

The Members are aware that the Company was allotted 200 MW Bara Bhangal Hydro-electric
Project (HEP) on River Ravi in Indus Basin located in District Chamba of Himachal Pradesh. As
apprised to the members in the previous Report, some part of project falls under Dhauladhar Wild
Life Sanctuary (DWLS). After approval of the Govt. of Himachal Pradesh (GoHP) to implement Bara
Bangahal Hydro-electric Project (200 MW) in two stages, a Supplementary Pre-Implementation
Agreement (SPIA) was signed with the State Government on 03.02.2014 to implement Bara
Bangahal Stage — | HEP (92 MW) which was also subsequently found in eco zone of wild life area.
The Company had mentioned the difficulty due to wildlife norms, and had written to the
Directorate of Energy, Government of Himachal Pradesh vide letter dated 09.12.2015, and
expressed its inability in doing project. In this regard, the Company had also requested for refund

4
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of the entire amount of upfront premium of Rs. 612.00 million paid by MPCL for allotment of the
project along with interest @ 12%. The Company has received communication from the Directorate
of Energy, vide its letter dated 20th March 2018 stating that the request of the Company is under
consideration and the decision shall accordingly be conveyed.

The Government of Himachal has so far not taken any decision in this regard. In view of this,
besides constant follow up with the GoHP, the Board of Directors of the company has decided to
take alternate legal recourses.

. SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE COMPANIES OR JOINT VENTURES

AD Hydro Power Limited, is the only subsidiary of your Company, is engaged in operation,
maintenance and generation of 192MW hydro electric project in the state of Himachal Pradesh.

In terms of the provisons of section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the audited financial
statements of AD Hydro Power Limited, subsidiary company of Malana Power Company Limited are
being annexed in this Annual Report and have also been placed on the website of the Company. The
financial statements of the subsidiary Company are kept for inspection by the shareholders at the
registered office and corporate office of the Company.

The subsidiary Company has reported net profit of Rs. 216.87 million in the financial year 2020-21
as compared to net profit of Rs. 285.67 million in the financial year 2019-20. The generation at
Allain Duhangan 192MW during the year stood at 640.51 Million kWh in the financial year 2020-21
as compared to 758.67 Million kWh in the previous financial year 2019-20.

A report on the performance and financial position of the subsidiary Company as per the
Companies Act, 2013 in the Form AOC- 1 is annexed to the Consolidated Financial Statement and
hence not repeated for the sake of brevity. There are no other associate or joint ventures of the
Company.

4. DIVIDEND
¢+ Your Directors do not propose any final dividend for the financial year under review.
+* An interim dividend of Rs.1.40 per share for FY 2020-21, aggregating to Rs. 206.54 million
on equity share capital of the company was paid out of the profits of company to the equity
shareholders whose name appeared in the Register of Members as on 2" February 2021.

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve for the financial year
2020-21.
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6. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

No material changes and commitments, affecting the financial positing of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and the date of the report.

7. INDUSTRY POTENTIAL & DEVELOPMENT

India has now become the third largest producer as well as consumer of electricity in the world
with all India installed power generation capacity as on 31.03.2021 stood at 3,382,151 MW
comprising of 2,34,728 MW from Thermal, 46,209 MW from Hydro, 6,780 MW from Nuclear and
94,434 MW from Renewable.

During the fiscal year 2020-21, the energy availability was 1,271 BU as against requirement of 1,276
BU kWh with a marginal shortfall of 0.4% and peak load was 189 GW as against peak demand of
190 GW with a marginal shortfall of 0.4%. The average monthly market clearing price at the Indian
Energy Exchange (IEX) remained moderate taking the average price to Rs.2.82/kWh in 2020-21 @
Regional Periphery. During 2020-21, total short term power transactions were approximately 12%
of yearly generation.

The slowdown caused by first and second wave of Covid-19 is now slowly opening up and all India
power consumption is showing an increasing trend. Peak power demand has touched the milestone
figure of 200 GW in July 2021 itself and it can be ascertained that the peak power demand will
increase further in near future thereby creating more opportunities for Merchant Power Plants in
catering such increased demand for power. However, any resurgence in infections leading to
lockdown restrictions would remain a key downside risk for the demand.

In order to speed up the development of hydro power, from time to time, the Govt. of India has
been taking policy initiatives. Recently Ministry of Power (MoP), vide its notification dated 8th
March 2019, has declared large hydropower projects including pumped storage projects as
renewable energy source and in its order dated 29th January, 2021, ministry also announced the
trajectory for Hydro Purchase Obligation (HPO) from eligible Large Hydro Projects.

Renewable Energy being the major thrust area under power sector development, has seen a
consistent and significant capacity addition over the years. Renewable Energy currently constitutes
24.7% (Mar’21) of the overall installed capacity compared to 3.3% share in 2002. During 2020-21.
As of March 2021, India’s Renewable Energy installed capacity stood at 94.43 GW.

Going forward, energy dynamics are changing with the increasing share of renewable power. This
may lead to voltage & frequency fluctuations as well as demand —supply mismatch. Thus energy

demand and supply dynamics, transmission system capabilities and grid balancing mechanism need

6
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to be addressed. Energy Storage System ( ESS ) could play a significant role to act as ancillary
reserves for managing fluctuations in renewable power generation at the grid level.

The country’s power sector is witnessing a shift from fossil fuels to clean energy and today we are
in the middle of an energy transition. The role of power sector is now extended to facilitate the
growth of new technologies through strong policies and programs in addition to mere generation &
supply of power.

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and
adhere to the corporate governance requirements set out by under the Companies Act, 2013.

Your Company is committed to achieving the higher standard of Corporate Governance by
application of the best management practices, compliance with law, adherence to ethical
standards and discharge of social responsibilities. Your Company has in all spheres of its activities
adequate checks and balances to ensure protection of interest of all stakeholders. Your Company
also endeavors to share, with its stakeholders’ openly and transparently, information on matters
which have a bearing on their economic and reputational interest.

The majority of the Board comprises of Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors
appointed under the Companies Act, 2013, who play a critical role in imparting balance to the
Board processes, by bringing an independent judgment to decide on issues of strategy,
performance, resources, standards of Company’s conduct, etc. The Audit Committee of the Board
provides assurance to the Board on the adequacy of Internal Control Systems and Financial
Systems.

9. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY THEREOF

The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business. An internal audit program covers various activities and periodical reports are
submitted to the management. The Audit Committee reviews financial statements, internal audit
reports along with internal control systems. The Company has a well-defined organizational
structure, authority levels, delegation of powers and internal rules and guidelines for conducting
business transactions.

10. PERSONNEL

Industrial relations

The industrial relations during the period under review remained cordial at the Plant and Corporate
office of the Company without any untoward incidents.

b) Particulars of employees
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The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed herewith as Annexure - I.

11. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

The details in regard to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 are
mentioned hereunder:

a) Amount accepted during the year Nil

b) Amount remained unpaid or unclaimed Nil

as at the end of the year

c) Default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year and if so,
number of such cases and the total amount involved

i) at the beginning of the year -N/A-
ii) maximum during the year -N/A-
iii) at the end of the year -N/A-

The company does not have deposits which are in contradiction of Chapter V of the Act.

Your Company has not invited any deposits from public/shareholders in accordance with Chapter V
of the Companies Act, 2013.

12. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals during the
financial year 2020-21, impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

13. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS &
OUTGO

The information with regard to Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and outgo in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is given as Annexure Il forming
part of this Report.

14. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year, the following changes were there in the composition of the Board of Directors:
Re-appointments

During the year, Mr. Knut Leif Bredo Erichsen (DIN: 07270992) would have retired by rotation at

the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, had offered himself for re-appointment
and the members had approved his re-appointment.
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** Mr. Om Prakash Ajmera (DIN: 00322834) was appointed as Executive Director, CEO & CFO for a
term of 5 (five) consecutive years on the Board of the Company 4th February 2020 to 3rd February
2025.

Your Directors further inform the members that declarations have been taken from the
Independent Directors at the beginning of the financial year stating that they meet the criteria of
independence as specified under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of Companies Act, 2013.

A declaration on compliance with Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, along with a declaration as provided in the Notification dated October 22,
2019, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), regarding the requirement relating to
enrolment in the Data Bank for Independent Directors, has been received from all the Independent
Directors, along with declaration made under Section 149(6) of the Act. In the opinion of the Board,
Independent Directors possesses integrity, expertise and vast experience including proficiency.

Appointments & Resignations

®,

«* Mr. Knut Leif Bredo Erichsen (DIN: 07270992) resigned as Director on the Board of the
Company w.e.f. 31t December 2020.

¢ Mr. Rahul Varshney (DIN: DIN 03516721) was appointed as Additional Director on the
Board of the Company w.e.f. 2" February 2021.

¢ There was no other change/resignation in the Board of Directors.

Proposed Re-appointments in the ensuing 24" Annual General Meeting of the Company

% To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Tima lyer Utne (DIN: 06839949), who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment.

+* Re-appointment of Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala as Chairman & Managing Director

7

+* To confirm appointment of Mr. Rahul Varshney (DIN: DIN 03516721) who was appointed as
Director on the Board of the Company. The Board on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee had recommended his appointment as Director of
the Company, subject to approval of Shareholders in the ensuing 24" Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala, Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Om Prakash Ajmera, Chief Financial
Officer and Mr. Arvind Gupta, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Personnel of the

9
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Company as on 315t March, 2021, in accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Act read
with Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

15. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee approved a
policy for appointment, re-appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management and their remuneration. The policy is appended as Annexure-Ill forming part

of this Report.

16. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Board of Directors had met 5 (five) times during the financial year 2020-21. The meetings of
the Board were held on 4th June 2020, 31st July 2020, 29th October 2020, 18th November 2020
and 2nd February 2021 respectively.

The attendance for the above mentioned meetings were as follows:

S NO. OF NO. OF
N(.). NAME OF DIRECTOR CATEGORY MEETINGS MEETINGS
HELD ATTENDED
1. Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala Chalrm.an &. > 4
Managing Director
2. Ms. Tima lyer Utne NF)n—Executlve > >
Director
Mr. Knut Leif Bredo 4 4
3 Erichsen (entitled to Non-Executive
) attend only 4 meeting | Director
as Director)
Non-Executive 5 5
4. Dr. Kamal Gupta Independent Director
c Mr. Tantra Narayan Non-Executive, 5 5
' Thakur Independent Director
Mr. Om Prakash N 5 5
6. . Executive Director
Ajmera
Mr. Rahul Varshney 1 1
7. (entitled to attend only | Additional Director
1 meeting as Director)

10
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17. MEETINGS OF THE COMMITTEES

At present, the Board has three Committees: (i) Audit committee, (ii) Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, (iii) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

According to requirements under the Companies Act, 2013, the meetings of the Committees of the
Board were conducted as and when required and their decisions and recommendations were duly
accepted by the Board.

The following are the compositions and attendance of the above mentioned committees.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As per section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board has constituted an Audit Committee
whose roles and responsibilities are to review the Company’s financial results, review Internal
Control Systems, Risk and Internal Audit Reports. The proceedings of the Committee have been in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. All the
recommendations of the Audit Committee were duly accepted by the Board during the financial
year 2020-21.

The composition as well as the Audit Committee meetings held in the financial year 2020-21 is as
below:

Composition of the Committee

All the Members of the Committee possess knowledge of corporate finance, accounts and
corporate laws. The Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and Senior Executives of the Company
were invited to attend the respective meetings of the Committee. The Company Secretary acts as
the Secretary to the Committee.

S. Name of Member Designation | Category

No.

1 Ms. Tima lyer Utne Member Non-Executive Director

2 Dr. Kamal Gupta Member Non-Executive Independent Director
3 Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur Member Non-Executive Independent Director

Meetings and attendance

The Audit Committee had met four times during the financial year to review the financial
statements and the Internal Audit Reports of the Company. The meetings were held on 4th June
2020, 31st July 2020, 29th October 2020 and 2nd February 2021 respectively.

The attendance for the above mentioned meetings are as below:

11
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S NO. OF NO. OF
Né. NAME OF MEMBER CATEGORY MEETINGS | MEETINGS
HELD ATTENDED
1. Ms. Tima lyer Utne Chairperson 4 4
2. Dr. Kamal Gupta Member 4 4
3 Mr. Tantra Narayan Member 4 4
Thakur

(i) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As per section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, your Board had constituted Nomination and
Remuneration Committee. The proceedings of the Committee have been in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. The NRC policy may be
accessed on the Company’s website.

The Composition of the Committee is as under:

For the financial year 2020-21, the composition of the Nomination and remuneration Committee

was as follows:

S. Name of Member Designation | Category

No.

1 Ms. Tima lyer Utne Member Non-Executive Director

2 Dr. Kamal Gupta Member Non-Executive Independent Director
3 Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur Member Non-Executive Independent Director

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Meetings and attendance

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee had met two times during the financial year. The
meetings were held on 31st July 2020 and 2nd February 2021 respectively.

The attendance for the above mentioned meetings are as below:

s NO. OF NO. OF
Né. NAME OF MEMBER CATEGORY MEETINGS MEETINGS
HELD ATTENDED
1. Ms. Tima lyer Utne Member 2 2
2. Dr. Kamal Gupta Member 2 2
3 Mr. Tantra Narayan Member ) ’
Thakur

12
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(iii) CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Your Company has been diligently following the Corporate Social Responsibility policies. As part of
its initiatives under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR), the Company had undertaken projects in
the areas of promotion of Education, taking initiatives towards Community Service and rural
development, Healthcare, Plantation & Environmental Development, Protection of art, culture etc.
These projects were in accordance with the CSR Policy of the Company and Schedule VII of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

As per the Companies Act, 2013, all the companies which having net worth of Rs. 500 crore or
more, or a turnover of Rs. 1000 crore or more, or a net profit of Rs. 5 crore or more are required to
constitute CSR Committee of the Board of Directors comprising three or more Directors out of
which atleast one should be the Independent Director. All such Companies are required to spend
atleast 2% of its average net profit on the three preceding financial years on the CSR related
activities.

During the financial year 2020-21, the amount for CSR expenditure was Rs. 18.65 Million (being 2%
of average net profit before tax of last three financial years) as per the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 and rules made there under plus Rs. 0.22 million Carry forward of Unspent CSR amount
from previous financial year 2019-20, aggregating to Rs.18.87 million. The Company had spent
Rs.6.07 million on CSR in the financial year 2020-21 and Rs.12.80 million remained unspent.

The Company had obtained the approval of the Board to transfer the unspent CSR amount of
approx. Rs.12.80 million for FY 2020-21 into a separate escrow bank account maintained with ICICI
Bank Limited. The account was opened with ICICI Bank and the unspent CSR funds were transferred
to this account. All the expenditures on the following two ongoing projects only would be routed
through the Board approved escrow bank account only:

a) Construction of “Government school building” for Gram Panchayat at Village Prini: Rs.11.80
million, and

b) Construction of Sarswati Vidya Mandir School : Rs.1.00 million

The Company shall keep on taking the endeavors to meet the expenditure planned for CSR
activities. The CSR policy may be accessed on the Company’s website at the link mentioned below:
http://malanapower.com/docs/MPCL CSR Policy.pdf

The Annual Report on CSR activities is enclosed as Annexure VI, forming part of this report.

13
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The composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is as under:

S. Name of Member Designation | Category

No.

1 Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala Member Chairman & Managing
Director

2 Ms. Tima lyer Utne Member Non-Executive Director

3 Dr. Kamal Gupta Member Non-Executive Independent
Director

> Meetings and attendance

The committee had met four times on 4th June 2020, 31st July 2020, 29th October 2020 and 2nd
February 2021 respectively. The attendance for the committee is as follows:

S NO. OF NO. OF
Né NAME OF MEMBER CATEGORY MEETINGS MEETINGS
) HELD ATTENDED
1 Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala | Chairman & 4 3
) Managing Director
Ms. Tima lyer Utne Non-Executive
2. . 4 3
Director
Dr. Kamal Gupta Non-Executive
3. . 4 4
Independent Director

(iv) INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING

During the financial year 2020-21, the Independent Directors met on 19t March 2021, without the
attendance of Non Independent Directors and members of the Management. The Independent
Directors reviewed the performance of Non—Independent Directors and the Board as a whole; the
performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Managing Director
and Non—-Executive Directors and assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of
information between the Company Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to
effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

(v) BOARD EVALUATION:

The Board is responsible for undertaking a formal annual evaluation of its own performance,
committees and individual Directors with a view to review their functioning and effectiveness and
to determine whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent
directors. During the year, the Board carried out the performance evaluation of itself, Committees
and each of the executive directors/non-executive directors/independent directors excluding the
director being evaluated. The evaluation of performance of Independent Director is based on the
criteria laid down in the Nomination and Remuneration policy which includes knowledge and

14
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experience in the field of power sector, legal, finance and CSR activities. Your Directors express
their satisfaction with the evaluation process and inform that the performance of the Board as a
whole, its committee and its member individually was adjudged satisfactorily.

18. MEETING OF THE MEMBERS

The Annual General meeting of the members was held on 24t September 2020.

19. VIGIL MECHANISM /WHISTLE BLOWER

The Board on the recommendation of Audit Committee has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy. The

details of the same are disclosed on the website of the Company and a web link thereto is as under:
http://malanapower.com/docs/MPCL Whistle Blower Policy.pdf

20. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL (IFC) SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Directors are responsible for laying down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. As
per Section 134(5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors’ Responsibility Statement shall
state the same.

Your Company has adopted the IFC framework as guidance, for ensuring adequate controls and its
effectiveness within the company. The process of assessment of IFC would require setting up of an
internal controls function in the organization. The Accounts & Finance Team has been trained to
implement and evaluate the design and operating effectiveness of the IFC framework. The
framework also focuses on internal controls over financial reporting (ICFR) that are put in place to
develop and maintain reliable financial data, and to accurately present the same in a timely and
appropriate manner. The framework refers to the policies and procedures adopted by the company
for ensuring , orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The IT controls provide reasonable assurance of achieving the control objectives related to the
processing of financial information within the computer processing environment. IT controls
ensures appropriate functioning of IT applications and systems built by the organization to enable
accurate and timely processing of financial data.

Your Company deploys best in class applications and systems which streamline business processes,
to improve performance and reduce costs. These systems provide seamless integration across
modules and functions resulting into strong MIS platform and informed decision—making by the
Management.

15
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The company has adequate and effective internal financial control in place which is being
periodically evaluated. The Company has put in place strong internal control systems and best in
class processes commensurate with its size and scale of operations. Internal Financial Control is a
continuous process operating at all levels within the Company.

The ICFR is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with applicable
accounting principles and policies & procedures.

21. CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All the related party transactions entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length
basis and were in the ordinary course of business. Your Company had not entered into any
transactions with related parties which could be considered material in terms of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under
Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC 2 is not applicable.

22. STATUTORY AUDITORS

The members had appointed M/s Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP, (Firm Registration Number is
117366W /W-100018), Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company on 28t
September 2017 for a term of 5 years, to hold office from the conclusion of the 20" Annual General
Meeting until the conclusion of the 25" Annual General Meeting of the Company. Further the
statutory auditors had confirmed that the said appointment, when made, was within the
prescribed limits under Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and also the statutory auditor
is not disqualified under section 141(3) of the Companies Act 2013.

The Auditors’ Report read along with notes to accounts is self-explanatory and therefore does not
call for any further comments. The Statutory Auditors expressed an unmodified opinion in the audit
reports with respect to audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.
The Auditors’ Report does not contain any qualification, reservation adverse remark or disclaimer
which requires any explanation from the Board of Directors.

23. COST AUDITORS

The Cost Audit for financial year ended March 31, 2020 was conducted by M/s K.G. Goyal & Co.,
Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 0017). The Cost Audit Report in XBRL mode for financial
year ended March 31, 2020 was filed within the due date. The Cost Audit Report does not contain
any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer.

Based on the Audit Committee recommendations at its meeting held on 2™ February 2021, the

Board has approved the re-appointment of M/s K.G. Goyal & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 0017), as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22 at a
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remuneration of Rs. 0.45 lakhs plus service tax and out of pocket expenses that may be incurred by
them during the course of audit. As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration
payable to the cost auditor is required to be placed before the Members in a general meeting for
their ratification. Accordingly, a Resolution seeking Member’s ratification for the remuneration
payable to M/s K.G. Goyal & Co., Cost Auditors is included in the Notice convening the Annual
General Meeting.

24. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

The Company had appointed M/s. P. Kathuria & Associates, Company Secretaries, to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21, pursuant to Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure IV for kind
attention of the Members. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation adverse remark or disclaimer.

25. INTERNAL AUDITORS

Based on the Audit Committee recommendations, the Board had appointed M/s. BGIC &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditors of the Company for a period of
three years i.e. FY 2020-21, FY 2021-22 and FY 2022-23, subject to review of their performance
from time to time.

26. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY THE AUDITORS’

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditor, Secretarial Auditor, Cost Auditor and Internal
Auditor of the Company have not reported any matter under section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013. Therefore, no detail regarding reporting of fraud is required to be disclosed under section
134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013.

27. RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of risk management at the Company is to protect shareholder value by minimizing
threats or losses and identifying and maximizing opportunities. An enterprise wide risk
management framework is applied so that effective management of risk is an integral part of every
employee’s job.

The Audit Committee of the Company oversees the Risk functions. Further, to manage the Risk, the
Company has is in place Operations & Steering Committee (OSC) and a Policy thereto, which inter
alia includes the Risk Management Policy including mitigation plans. The Company’s risk
management strategy is integrated with the overall business strategies of the organization and is
communicated throughout the organization. Risk management capabilities aide in establishing
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competitive advantage and allow management to develop reasonable assurance regarding the
achievement of the Company’s objectives.

The annual strategic planning done by OSC provides platform for identification, analysis, treatment
and documentation of key risks. It is through this annual planning process that key risks and risk
management strategies are communicated to the Board. The effectiveness of risk management
strategies is monitored both formally and informally by Management. There is no major risk which
may threaten the existence of the Company.

28. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors confirm that:

. In preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and

there are no material departures from the same;

.They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year ended 315t March, 2021 and of the profit of
the Company for the year under review;

They have taken proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

. They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

That proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate
and were operating effectively;

. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws

and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.
29. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

30. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return inform MGT-9 is annexed herewith as

Annexure V. The Annual Return and also the extract of Annual Return in form MGT-9 is also placed
on the website of the Company www.malanapower.com
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31. GENERAL DISCLOSURE

The company has maintained the cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and accordingly such accounts and records
are made and maintained by the company.

The Company has a group policy in place against Sexual Harassment in line with the requirements
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013. The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. No complaints were received during the financial year 2020-21.

There was no change in the name of the Company and its nature of business.

The financial year of the Company was same as of previous year.

During the year, there was no change in the issued share capital of the company.

To the best of our knowledge and belief there has been no instance of fraud that has occurred or
reported during the Financial Year 2020-21.

The Company is in compliance of all the applicable secretarial standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, issued from time to time.

32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors’ place on record their sincere appreciation for the co-operation and support
received by your Company from the Ministry of Power, Government of Himachal Pradesh, Ministry
of Corporate Affairs, Central and State Government and other government agencies, Lenders,
Banks, Financial Institutions, PTC India Limited, Statkraft Markets Private Limited, India Energy
Exchange and our valued customers, who have continued their valuable support and
encouragement during the year under review. Board also thanks the employees at all levels, for the
dedication, commitment and hard work put in by them for Company’s achievements.

Your involvement as shareholders is greatly valued and appreciated. The Directors look forward to
your continuing support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Ig /
e Y

g

Ravi thunjhunwala

Chairman and Managing Director

Place: Noida (DIN 00060972)
Date: 2" August 2021 Address: Bhilwara Towers, A-12,

Sector-1, Noida-201301
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ANNEXURE — 1 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The information of employees as prescribed under the provisions of Section 197 read with Rule 5, sub rule 2 & 3 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 under the Companies Act, 2013, who were employed throughout or
for a part of the financial year under review is given as under:

Whather
Remuneration Last Employment, held, ;
Name of top 10 Employees in 6 i 3 35 - ; |Date of Commencement of | SoEa e - Nature of employes is
S No. Desigration B3, Milicn) Qualification Eaperience Oeganisation, Desigration 8 | Sharsholdieg %
Aerms of remuseration | fi ! Ape Employment o A employmest relative of
Durstion 4
Director
1 W Ravi lwnpunwela Khairmar & Managng Drector ns 8. Com |Hors, | MEA 4 % 1400 2001 Promoter Director Ni Cortractual No
1 MW .OP Ajmera £aecumv Direcror, CEQ & CHD ins FCARACS u % 1-4pr- 2004 HEGLTD, NI Feemanent No
3 W SuntGayg 15, General Manager- Commercial 7.6 8.Com n 0 15-Jae- 2007 SELLTD. NI Fermangnt Ne
5 M doil Numee Garg Gensral Manager - Busisess Dewicpment 530 B.5¢ 8E, MBA {Marketing) 5 50 2342001 Melvits Steed L0é, Ni Permanent No
ical Ergg. EMY r Ll J i
4 W TL Treban Nice Preudert 450 Paros I octial Eom E0BA b iy Q 2 o 2007 TR 3s Sty oactar fat Nl Sermanent Mo
management, PGOMA anergy management. 2eyears
& v Mohan Wast, General Manager -Accounts 339 8, Com, #GD,MBA N 9 1-AprJDM4 HEGLTD, Nl Farmanent No
T e WA Raflg Manager [Bectrical) 157 8 Tech [Elect.| 5 8 IR0 Stea! Buliders - Hyderabed Nl Fermanant No
3 Wr Despok Guphs |Manager- Actounts 161 Bachalor of Arty 3 51 1-Apr-2004 HEGLTD. Nl Fenmanent No
9 W CC Sebastian Senices Coordnatar w1 Bachelor of Arts L ¥ 8 14pri0M HEGLTD. Ni Permanent No
Mardakard Cosl Compary
10 N, Arvind Gupta 5. Manager & Comgany Sacretary 159 FCS, LS. & B.Com [Dethi Lrvarsity) 15 5] anl-0M4 u.u . N Fermanant No
IV of Tata Powesr, linde
Photo & Monnst ispat )
(6] Kames of meary empioyes whose fals under §mit prescribad im Bule $12) of the Companies [Appantmant snd B of Managerat F i} Rutes, 2014
Whather
| § Remunarston _ ) | Date of Commencement of | | SharsboMirginthe | Natureof smpkaws is
No. Name of & tion Qualfication o | tEr 1 bek
S No. Mame of Empioyre Desgnatior (ia s, nilicas) Qualficatio Dperience LH Eplment Last Employment Seid at o arploment relstive of
Uirector
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ANNEXURE Il TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

(A) Conservation of energy

(a)the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy;

Installation of three nos. Variable Frequency Drive (VFDs) in PH on TG Cooling Water
pumps.

Replacement of conventional lighting with Light Emitting Diodes (LED) in 132kV
Switchyard, Street Lighting in Powerhouse complex, residential colony and Barrage
complex.

(b) the steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: NIL

(c)the capital investment on energy conservation equipment till 315t March 2021;

i) VFD : Rs. 8,65,000/-
ii) LED : Rs. 1,684,688/-
Total (i+ii) Rs. 2,549,688/-

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption: As above

(i) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development
or import substitution: Installation of three nos. variable frequency drive in
Powerhouse have resulted in cost reduction i.e. energy saving to the tune of Rs.
6,227,576/-. Similarly replacement of conventional lighting with LED has also
contributed in cost reduction of Rs. 1,993,023/- only. This cost reduction will be more
in the next coming year.

(i) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from
the beginning of the financial year) : NIL

(a) the details of technology imported;

(b) the year of import;

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons
thereof; and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development :Rs. NIL
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(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(Rs. in Million)

S. No. Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
| Foreign Exchange Outgo

Traveling and conveyance 0.00 0.00

Others 0.40 0.35

Total 0.40 0.35
1 Foreign Exchange Earnings

Others (Sale of Voluntary Emission Rights) 6.62 7.10
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ANNEXURE Il TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, Malana
Power Company Limited is required to constitute a Nomination and Remuneration Committee
with at least three or more non-executive Directors, out of which not less than one half shall be
independent directors. The Company already had a Remuneration Committee with three Non-
Executive Directors. In order to align the same with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
and Rules made thereunder from time to time, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on
the 16th March, 2015, renamed the “Remuneration Committee” as “Nomination and
Remuneration Committee”.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee and its Policy being in compliance with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the applicable Rules made
thereunder, applies to the Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and the Senior
management Personnel of the Company.

1. OBJECTIVE

The Key Objectives of the Committee would be:

a) to advise the Board in relation to appointment, appraisal and removal of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company.

b) to evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report
to the Board for further evaluation of the Board.

C) to recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial

Personnel and Senior Management.
2. DEFINITIONS

(a) “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from
time to time.

(b) “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

(c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP), means:

i. Chief Executive Officer or the managing director or the manager;
ii. Company Secretary,

iii. Whole-time Director;

iv. Chief Financial Officer; and

v. such other officer as may be prescribed.

(d) Senior Management: Senior Management means personnel of the company who are
members of its core management team excluding the Board of Directors. This would also

23




3.

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

j)

i
MALANA POWER COMPANY LIMITED
MPCL

MALANA POWER

include all members of management one level below the executive directors including all
functional heads.

ROLE OF COMMITTEE
The role of the Committee inter alia will be the following:

reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, with the objective
to diversify the Board;

to recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Director or Key Managerial
Personnel or Senior Management Personnel.

to carry out evaluation of Director’s performance.

assessing the independence of independent directors;

to make recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the
continuation in office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of
service of an Executive Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of
the law and their service contract;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration/fee payable to the Directors/
KMPs/Senior Officials so appointed/re-appointed;

ensure that level and composition of remuneration of Directors, KMP’s and Senior
Management is reasonable and sufficient. The relationship of remuneration to performance
is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

to devise a policy on Board diversity;

to develop a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and to regularly review
the plan;

such other key issues/matters as may be referred by the Board or as may be necessary in
view of the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

4. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee shall consist of a minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them
being independent.

However, the Chairperson of the Company (whether executive or non-executive) may be
appointed as a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, but shall not
chair such Committee.
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Minimum two (2) members shall constitute a quorum for the Committee meeting.

Membership of the Committee shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.

Term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of Directors.
5. CHAIRMAN

Chairman of the Committee shall be a Non-executive Director.

Chairperson of the Company may be appointed as a member of the Committee but shall not
be a Chairman of the Committee.

In the absence of the Chairman, the members of the Committee present at the meeting
shall choose one amongst them to act as Chairman.

Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting could be present at the
Annual General Meeting or may nominate some other member to answer the shareholders'
queries.

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required.
COMMITTEE MEMBERS' INTERESTS

A member of the Committee is not entitled to be present when his or her own
remuneration is discussed at a meeting or when his or her performance is being evaluated.

The Committee may invite such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the
meetings of the Committee.

SECRETARY
The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee.

VOTING
Matters arising for determination at Committee meetings shall be decided by a majority of
votes of Members present and voting and any such decision shall for all purposes be

deemed a decision of the Committee.
In the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the meeting will have a casting vote.

10. POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure that Board of Directors have
the combination of Directors from different areas /fields or as may be considered
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appropriate in the best interest of the Company. The Board shall have atleast one Board
member who has accounting/ financial management expertise.

NOMINATION DUTIES
The duties of the Committee in relation to nomination matters include:

Ensuring that there is an appropriate induction & training Program in place for new
Directors and members of Senior Management and reviewing its effectiveness;

Ensuring that on appointment to the Board, Non-Executive Directors receive a formal letter
of appointment in accordance with the Guidelines provided under the Companies Act, 2013;

Determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;

Follow a formal and transparent procedure for selecting new Directors for appointment to
the Board, Key Managerial Personnel’s and Senior Management Personnel;

Developing a succession plan for the Board and Senior Management and regularly reviewing
the plan;

Evaluating the performance of the Board members and Senior Management in the context
of the Company's performance from business and compliance perspective;

Making recommendations to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation
in office of any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of an
Executive Director as an employee of the Company subject to the provision of the law and
their service contract.

Delegating any of its powers to one or more of its members or the Secretary of the
Committee;

Considering any other matters as may be requested by the Board;
REMUNERATION DUTIES

The Committee will recommend the remuneration/fee to be paid to the Managing Director,
Whole-time Director, other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
Personnel to the Board for their approval.

The level and composition of remuneration/fee so determined by the Committee shall be
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management of the quality required to run the Company successfully.
The relationship of remuneration/fee to performance should be clear and meet appropriate
performance benchmarks. The remuneration should also involve a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the Company and its goals.
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Director/ Managing Director

Besides the above Criteria, the Remuneration/ compensation/ commission/fee to be paid to
Director/ Managing Director/ Whole Time Director shall be governed as per provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time
being in force.

Non-executive Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive remuneration by way of sitting fees
for attending meetings of Board or Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such
fees shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force.

Key Managerial Personnel’s /Senior Management Personnel etc

The Remuneration to be paid to Key Managerial Personnel’s/ Senior Management
Personnel shall be based on the experience, qualification, performance and expertise of the
related personnel and governed by the limits, if any prescribed under the Companies Act,
2013 and Rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel’s/ Senior Management Personnel etc. for indemnifying them against any liability,
the premium paid on such insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration
payable to any such personnel.

13. EVALUATION/ ASSESSMENT OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The evaluation/assessment of the Directors of the Company is to be conducted on an
annual basis.

The following criteria may assist in determining how effective the performances of the
Directors have been:

Contributing to clearly defined corporate objectives & plans

Obtain adequate, relevant & timely information from external sources

Review of strategic and operational plans, objectives and budgets

Regular monitoring of corporate results against projections

Identify, monitor & take steps for mitigation of significant corporate risks

Assess policies, structures & procedures

Review management’s succession plan

Effective meetings

Assuring appropriate board size, composition, independence, structure

Clearly defining roles & monitoring activities of committees

Additionally, for the evaluation/assessment of the performances of Managing
Director(s)/Whole Time Director(s) of the Company, following criteria may also be
considered:
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e Leadership abilities
e Communication of expectations & concerns clearly with subordinates
e Direct, monitor & evaluate KMPs, senior officials

Evaluation on the aforesaid parameters will be conducted by the Independent Directors for
each of the Executive/Non- Independent Directors in a separate meeting of the
Independent Directors.

The Executive Director/Non-Independent Directors along with the Independent Directors
will evaluate/assess each of the Independent Directors on the aforesaid parameters. Only
the Independent Director being evaluated will not participate in the said evaluation
discussion.

14. DISCLOSURE
The Remuneration policy and the evaluation criteria shall be disclosed in the Board’s
Report.

15. MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETING

Proceedings of all meetings must be minuted and signed by the Chairman of the Committee
at the subsequent meeting. Minutes of the Committee meetings will be tabled at the
subsequent Board and Committee meeting.

16. DEVIATIONS FROM THIS POLICY
Deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, when deemed
necessary in the interests of the Company, will be made if there are specific reasons to do
so in an individual case. However, this shall be subject to the approval of Board of Directors
on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company.

=XXX-
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ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 315" MARCH, 2021

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

Malana Power Company Limited (CIN: U40101HP1997PLC019959)
Himachal Pradesh

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Malana Power Company Limited
(hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 according to
the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii)The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv)Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment.
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(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):(All the following Regulations including
amendments, if any, from time to time are not applicable to the Company during the
Audit period)

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

(vi) Other law applicable specifically to the Company, as identified and on the basis of
representation given by the management:

- The Indian Electricity Act, 2003 and the Rules/ Regulations made thereunder; and
- The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &Redressal)
Act, 2013.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(Notified and effective from 1%tuly, 2015 and the revised version effective from
October 1%, 2017).

(ii) The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015.
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit period)

30




i
MALANA POWER COMPANY LIMITED
MPCL

MALANA POWER

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

| further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of this Act.

Normally adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaning full participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out unanimously as
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the
Board, as the case may be. There was no dissenting vote for any matter.

| further report thatl have relied on the representation made by the Company and its
officers for system and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other
applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company. Therefore, | am of the opinion that
the management has adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with

the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report, during the audit period, there were no other specific events/actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure |1” and
forms an integral part of this report.

FOR P. KATHURIA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(PRADEEP KATHURIA)
PLACE: NEW DELHI FCS 4655
DATE: 02.08.2021 CP 3086
UDIN: FO04655C000723758
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To

Annexure |

The Members,
Malana Power Company Limited (CIN: U40101HP1997PLC019959)
Himachal Pradesh

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on my audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices | followed provide a reasonable
basis for my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial record and
Books of Accounts of the company since the same have been subject to review by
Statutory Auditor.

Where ever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of documents perused by us.

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the

company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.

FOR P. KATHURIA & ASSOCIATES
COMPANY SECRETARIES

(PRADEEP KATHURIA)

PLACE: NEW DELHI FCS 4655
DATE: 02.08.2021 CP 3086

UDIN: FO04655C000723758
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ANNEXURE V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

FORM NO. MGT.9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31 March, 2021
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall

be stated:-
Sl. Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover
No. products/services Product/service | of the company
1 Hydro Power Generation 40101 100
Il1l. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -
S. NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Applicabl
NO | ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIARY/A | shares | e Section
THE SSOCIATE held
COMPANY
1. Bhilwara Energy | U31101DL2006PLC148862 | Holding 51% 2(46)
Limited Company
2. AD Hydro Power | U40101HP2003PLC026108 | Subsidiary 88% 2(87)
Limited Company

i) | CIN

U40101HP1997PLC019959

ii) | Registration Date

20-05-1997

Name of the Company

Malana Power Company Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the
Company

Public Company/ Limited by shares
Indian Non-Government Company

v) | Address of the registered office
and contact details

Village Chauki, Post Office Jari, Kullu-
175105, Himachal Pradesh; Phone:
01902-276074;276075

Transfer Agent, if any-

vi) | Whether listed company Yes / | No
No

vii) | Name, Address and Contact | MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, F-
details of Registrar and | 65, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,

Phase-I, New Delhi-110020
(Ph:-011-4140 6149)

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i. CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% Change
during the
year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a. Individual/HUF

50

50

0.000034

50

0.000034

NIL

b. Central Govt

NIL

c. State Govt (s)

d. Bodies Corp.

75,238,073

75,238,073

50.99997

75,238,073 -

75,238,073

50.99997

e. Banks / FI

f. Any Other....

Sub-total (A) (1):-

75,238,073

50

75,238,123

51.00

75,238,073 50

75,238,123

51.00

NIL

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals

b) Other — Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

72,287,608

72,287,608

48.999999

72,287,608

72,287,608

48.999999

NIL

d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other....

Sub-total (A) (2):-

0

72,287,608

72,287,608

48.999999

72,287,608

72,287,608

48.999999

NIL

Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) =
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

75,238,073

72,287,658

147,525,731

100

75,238,073|72,287,658

147,525,731

100

NIL

B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / Fl

c) Central  Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) FlIs

h) Foreign Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal capital in
excess of Rs 1 Lakh

c) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(2):-

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+(C)

75,238,073

72,287,658

147,525,731

100

75,238,073(72,287,658

147,525,731

100

NIL
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ii. SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Shareholding at the beginning of the T e e aT GHRE Ve
year
:I'I' Sharlsholder's % of %of Shares % of %of Shares o dimisli
o. ame ()
No. of total Pledged/ No. of total Pledged/ e
Shares Shares encumbered Shares Shares encumbered during the
of the to total of the to total g
year
company shares company | shares
Bhilwara
Energy 75,238,123 51% - 75,238,123 51% -
Limited*
1 NIL
Statkraft
Holding
Singapore
2 Pte. Ltd. 72,287,608 49% - 72,287,608 49% - NIL
Total 147,525,731 100% - 147,525,731 100% - NIL

*NOTE: Out of 75,238,123 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each held by Bhilwara Energy Limited, 50 Equity Shares
are held by individuals as registered owners, on behalf of Bhilwara Energy Limited. The Beneficial Interest
is with Bhilwara Energy Limited.

ili. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( PLEASE SPECIFY, IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

reasons for increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/ sweat equity etc):

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
S.l. .
No Particulars
) % of |
No. of % of tota No. of | % of total shares
shares of the
shares shares | of the company
company
1 At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in Promoters
5 Shareholding during the year specifying the NO CHANGES

3 At the End of the year - - - -
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iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS,
PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

Shareholding at the Cumulatlv'e )
.. Shareholding during
beginning of the year
S| the year
" | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders % of total % of total
No.
No. of shares of | No. of shares of
shares the shares the
company company
1 At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise Increase/Decrease in
Shareholding during the year
2 specifying the reasons for NO CHANGE
increase/decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/ bonus/sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year (or on the
3 date of separation, if separated - - - -
during the year)
v. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Cumulative

S.I.
No.

For Each of the Directors and KMP

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding during

the year
% of total % of total
No. of | shares of | No. of | shares of
shares the shares the
company company

At the beginning of the year

1

Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala

Dr. Kamal Gupta

Ms. Tima lyer Utne

Mr. Knut Leif Bredo Erichsen

Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur

O b lW|N

Mr. Om Prakash Ajmera (Executive
Director, CEO & CFO)

Mr. Arvind Gupta (Company
Secretary)
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Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding  during the vyear
specifying the reasons for increase / NO CHANGES
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the End of the year

1 | Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala - - - -
2 | Dr. Kamal Gupta - - - -
3 | Ms. Tima lyer Utne - - - -
4 | Mr. Rahul Varshney - - - -
6 | Mr. Tantra Narayan Thakur - - - -
6 Mr. Om Prakash Ajmera ( Executive i i i i
Director, CEO & CFO)
7 Mr. Arvind Gupta (Company i i i i
Secretary)

V. INDEBTEDNESS
(Amount in Rs. Million)

Secured Loans
Particulars excluding
deposits

Unsecured Debosits Total
Loans P Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal -
Amount 1,466.15 - 1,466.15
ii) Interest due -
but not paid - - -
iii) Interest
accrued but not 038 ) B 0.38
due
Total (i+ii+iii) 1,466.53 . - 1,466.53
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
e Addition 364.83 ) - 364.83
¢ Reduction 1,004.97 } - 1,004.97
N h

et Change (640.14) . - (640.14)
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal
Amount 826.01 - - 826.01

37




¥

MPCL

MALANA POWER

ii) Interest due

MALANA POWER COMPANY LIMITED

but not paid - - ' -
i) Interest

accrued but not 0.19 ) - 0.19
due

Total (i+ii+iii) 826.20 - - 826.20

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

(Amount in Rs. Million)

S1- Particulars of Remuneration Name of .Chalr'man and
No. Managing Director
1 Gross salary Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 53,73
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 0.61
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
Income- tax Act, 1961 )
2 Stock Option -
3 Sweat Equity -
4 Commission
- as % of profit 1.50% 5.15
- others, specify -
5 Others- Gas & Electricity, etc. -
Total (A) 29.49
(Calculated as per Section 198
- of the Companies Act, 2013 or
Ceiling as per the Act in terms ofpScheduIe V of the
Companies Act, 2013).

*Mr. O. P. Ajmera is Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer & Chief Financial Officer of the company.
Since he is Key Managerial Personnel under the Companies Act, 2013 in capacity of CFO, his remuneration is
disclosed in section C below (please refer below).

B. Remuneration to other Directors:
1. Independent Directors (Amount in Rs. Million)
Name of Directors Total
Sl Particulars of Remuneration Amount
No. Dr. Kamal |Mr. Tantra Narayan (In Rs.)
Gupta Thakur
1 |Fee for attending board & committee meetings 0.50 0.50 1.00
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2 | Commission - - -
3 | Others, please specify - - -
4 |Total (1) 0.50 0.50 1.00
2. Other Non-Executive Directors (if any)
Name of Directors
S.I. . . Mr. Knut Total
No. Particulars of Remuneration Ms. Tima Leif Bredo Mr. Rahul Amount
lyer Utne . Varshney (InRs.)
Erichsen
1 | Fee for attending board committee meetings Nil Nil Nil Nil
2 | Commission Nil Nil Nil Nil
3 | Others, please specify Nil Nil Nil Nil
4 |Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD
Key Managerial Personnel
(Amount in Rs. Million)
Mr. Om Prakash
S.l. Particulars of Aimera .
No. Remuneration (Executijve Director, | " Arvind Gupta Total
- . (Company
Chief Financial Secretary) Amount
Officer & Chief
Executive Officer)
1 |Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) 19.97 1.61 21.58
of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.28 0.03 0.32
(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) - - -
Income- tax Act, 1961
2 |Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
4 Commission - - -
- as % of profit - - -
- others, specify - - -
5 |Others, please specify 0.58 0.20 0.78
Total (A) 20.83 1.85 22.67
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VII.PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of Details of Appeal
. Penalty/ Authority - .
the Brief ) made, if
Type . .. Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/ .
Companies Description . any(give
Compounding COURT] .
Act . Details)
fees imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment NONE

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment NONE

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment NONE

Compounding
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ANNEXURE VI TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: The Company’s CSR activities are designed to
serve, societal, local and national goals in all the locations where company operates.
Through the CSR Policy, the company creates a significant and sustained impact on
communities around the Plant location. The Company also provides opportunities for the
Employees to contribute to these efforts through volunteering. More detailed in Point no.
17(iii) of Board Report.

. Composition of CSR Committee:

SI. | Name of Director | Designation / | Number of | Number of meetings of

No. Nature of | meetings of CSR|CSR Committee
Directorship Committee held | attended during the

during the year year
1 Mr. Ravi Chairman, 4 (Four) 3 (Three)
Jhunjhunwala Managing Director

2 Dr. Kamal Gupta Member, 4 (Four) 4 (Four)
Independent
Director

3 Ms. Tima lyer Utne [Member, Director (4 (Four) 3 (Three)

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.
http://malanapower.com/docs/MPCL CSR Policy.pdf

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if
applicable (attached the report) : Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any

41



http://malanapower.com/docs/MPCL%20CSR%20Policy.pdf

5

MALANA POWER COMPANY LIMITED
MPCL

Sl. No. Financial Amount available for set- | Amount required to be
Year off from preceding | set- off for the financial
financial years (in Rs) year, if any (in Rs)
Nil Nil

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 932.52 million

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 18.65 million

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years: Rs.0.22 million

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c) : Rs. 18.87 million

8.
(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent

Total Amount (in Rs.)

Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified

Spent for the
.p . Unspent CSR Account as per | \, 4o schedule VI as per second proviso to
Financial Year | section 135(6). )
section 135(5).

2020-21
(in Rs.) Name of
: Amount. | Date of the Amount. | Date of
transfer. Fund transfer.

Rs. 6.07 million Rs.12.80 |28 April 2021
million
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sl. | Name of the Project. Item from the list | Local area | Location of the | Projec | Amount Amount spent | Amount Mode Mode of
No. of activities in | (Yes/No). project. t allocated for inthe current | transferred to of Implementation
Schedule VII to the durati | theproject (in | financial Year | Unspent CSR | Implem | — Through
Act. on. Rs.). (in Rs.). Account for | enta Implementing
the project as | tion- Agency
per Section | Direct
135(6) (inRs.). | Yes/No
).
CSR
State.| District. Name| Registra
tion
number.
1 Construction of Education / Setting | Yes Hima | Kullu 36 Rs.20 million Rs.0.73 million | Rs.11.80 million| Yes, - -
“Government school up of School by chal months Direct.
building” for Gram providing school Prade
Panchayat at Village Prini| building sh
Education / Setting | Yes Hima | Kullu 12 Rs.1.00 million | Nil Rs. 1.00 million | Yes, - -
2 Construction of Sarswati | up of School by chal months Direct.
Vidya Mandir School providing school Prade
Building at Village building sh
Chhanikhod, Bhuntar
TOTAL Rs.21 Million Rs.0.73 million | Rs.12.80 million
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7 (8)
sl. Name of the Project Item from the list of Local Location of the project.| Amount Mode of | Mode of implementation -
No. activities in schedule area spent for the | implementa | Through implementing
VIl to the Act. (Yes/ project (in tion - | agency.
No). Rs.). Direct
(Yes/No)
CSR
State. District. Name. Registratio
n number.
1. [Acupressure Health Centre Promoting Health care  |Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs. 0.30 Mn Yes - -
Pradesh
2. [Providing Doctor and medicine facilities Promoting Health care  |Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.20 Mn Yes - -
Pradesh
3. [Financial support to Red Cross Society to  |Promoting Health care  [Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.30 Mn No Red Cross  [Registration in
help poor peoples during lockdown period Pradesh Society Progress
4. [Medicines and medical tests / examination |Promoting Health care  |Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.91 Mn Yes - -
to be provided to patients free of cost at Pradesh
MPCL-ADHPL Group dispensary, Village
Prini
5 |[Expenditure for Covid-19 pandemic Promoting Health care  |Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.09 Mn Yes - -
Pradesh
6. |Providing teaching aid and honorarium Promoting education Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.30 Mn Yes - -
Pradesh
7. [Construction of “Government school Promoting education Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.73 Mn Yes - -
building” for Gram Panchayat at Village Pradesh
Prini
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8. [MPCL Scholarship Scheme Promoting education Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.07 Mn Yes - -
Pradesh
9. [Nav Chetna special school for mentally Promoting education Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.14 Mn Yes - -
challenged Pradesh
10. [Govt. Primary School upgradation Promoting education Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.06 Mn Yes - -
Pradesh
11. |Greenery development in and around to  [Environmental Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.29 Mn Yes - -
prevent land/soil erosion sustainability and Pradesh
ecological balance
12. [Youth Association for Transforming Nation [Environmental Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.19 Mn No Youth Registration in
(YATN) - Bijli Mahadev in Pir Panjhal sustainability and Pradesh Association [process
mountain range cleaning campaign ecological balance for
Transformin
g Nation
(YATN)
13. [Construction of toilets in govt. schools and [Swachha Bharat Abhiyan |Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.88 Mn Yes - -
community conveniences within Dist. Kullu Pradesh
under Swachha Bharat Abhiyan
14. [MPCL sewing training (cutting & tailoring) |[Women Empowerment |Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.61 Mn Yes - -
and Pradesh
Ajeevika - Self-sustained model for women
to earn their livelihood.
15. [Support to NGOs - Human Welfare Society [Home for orphans Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.15 Mn No Human Registration in
Pradesh \Welfare process
Society
16. [Support to NGOs - Sahara Old Age Home  [Home for Senior Citizen |Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.76 Mn Yes Sahara Old [Registration in
Pradesh Age Home [process
17. [Financial Support to District Badminton Sports Yes Himachal [Kullu Rs.0.10 Mn Yes - -
tournament Pradesh
TOTAL Rs. 6.07 Mn

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
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(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : Rs. 18.87 million

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any

Sl. No.

Particular

Amount (in Rs.)

(i)

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per
section 135(5)

Rs. 18.87 million

(ii)

Total amount spent for the Financial Year

Rs.18.87 million

(iii)

Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]

(iv)

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v)

Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years

[(iif)-(iv)]

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NIL

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
Sl. | ProjectID. Name of the Financial Year | Project duration.| Total amount Amount spent on the | Cumulative amount Status of the project
No. Project. in  which the allocated for the project inthe spent at the end of Completed /Ongoing.
project was project (in Rs.). reporting Financial reporting Financial
commenced. Year (inRs). Year. (in Rs.)
1 Education Nav Chetna special[2019-20 18 months Rs.0.14 million Rs.0.14 million Rs.0.14 million Completed
school for
mentally
challenged
2. Education Govt. Primary 2019-20 18 months Rs.0.08 million Rs.0.08 million Rs.0.08 million Completed
School
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Upgradation

TOTAL

Rs.0.22 million

Rs.0.22 million

Rs.0.22 million

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the
financial year
(asset-wise details): As mentioned below:

S. No.

Name of Asset ->

Community toilet

Girl’s toilet at Govt. High School

Girl’s toilet at Govt. High School

(a)

Date of creation or
acquisition of the capital
asset(s).

20t September 2020

10t February 2021

315t March 2021

(b)

Amount of CSR spent for
creation or acquisition of
capital asset.

Rs.0.29 million

Rs.0.30 million

Rs.0.295 million

(c)

Details of the entity or
public authority or
beneficiary under whose
name such capital asset is
registered, their address
etc.

Panchayat of Barsogi-Bhuin

Government High School situated
at Village Dhara - Kothi Chong,
District Kullu, Himachal Pradesh

Government High School- Manikaran,
District Kullu, Himachal Pradesh

(d)

Provide details of the capital
asset(s) created or acquired
(including complete address
and location of the capital
asset).

A community

toilet

was

constructed and handed over
to the Panchayat of Barsogi-

Bhuin, situated
Kullu,  Himachal
175105

at

District
Pradesh-

A girl’s toilet was constructed and
handed over to the Government
High School situated at Village
Dhara - Kothi Chong, District Kullu,
Himachal Pradesh-175105

A girl’s toilet was constructed and
handed over to the Government High
School situated at Manikaran, District
Kullu, Himachal Pradesh-175105
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11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): ): Not Applicable

>~
¢
/

>

N—

~
- G

Ravi Jhunjhunwala Ravn' thunjhunwala - Om Prakash Ajmera
Chairman CSR Committee

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

% %k %k %k %k
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- Chartered Accountants
De|0|tte 7th Floor, Bullding 10, Tower B,
m DLF Cyber City Complex
Haskins & Sells LLP OLF City Phase 11,
Gurugram ~ 122 002
Haryana, India

Phone: +91 124 679 2000
Fax: 491 124 679 2012

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Malana Power Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Malana Power
Company Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind
AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at March 31, 2021 and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the standalone financlal statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 31.1 (ii) of the standalone financial statements, which describes
the uncertainty relating to the effects of outcome of litigation with Himachal Pradesh State
Electricity Board (HPSEBL).

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

e The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The
Director's report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor's
report.

 Our opinjon on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

» When we read the Director's report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance as
required under SA 720 ‘The Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information.’

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decislons of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
We are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider

and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act,

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act,

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements; <Refer note 31.1 to the standalone financial
statements>

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses. <Refer note 31.2 to the
standalone financial statements>

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. <Refer note 19 to the standalone
financial statements>




Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

(i B

Vikas Khurana

Chartered (Pa rth er)
(Membership No.503760)
(UDIN: 21503760AAAABF1470)

Accountants

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 17, 2021
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ANNEXURE “"A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Malana Power
Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “"Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internatl financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018

(i W

Chartered Vikas Khurana
(Partner)

(Membership No. 503760)
(UDIN: 21503760AAAABF1470)

Accountants

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 17, 2021
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ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(1

(i)

(iii)

In respect of Property, plant and equipment’s:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by
the Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which,
in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the Property Plant and
Equipment at reasonable Intervals. According to the information and explanation
given to us, no discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the award letter and certificate
of mutation provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all the
immovable properties of land and buildings, are held in the name of the Company
as at the balance sheet date. Further, immovable properties of land and buildings
whose title deeds have been pledged as security for term loans are held in the
name of the Company based on the confirmation received from IDBI Trusteeship
Services Limited (the security trustee).

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company had granted
unsecured loans amounting to Rs. 46,380 Lakhs to a subsidiary Company in earlier
years, in respect of which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie,

not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been stipulated

and in the absence of such schedule, we are unable to comment on the regularity of
the repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest.

(c) Since, there is no schedule of repayment as stated in (b) above, there is no overdue

(iv)

amount as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013 other than those stated above.

According to the information and explanations given to us, clause (iv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit from the public during the year. The Company does not have
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any unclaimed deposits and accordingly the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provision of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(vi)  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie,
the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other statutory dues
applicable to it to appropriate authorities and is generally been regular in
depositing the Income Tax with the appropriate authorities. The provisions
related to Customs Duty and Employee State Insurance is not applicable to the
Company. Also, refer to the Note No.31.1(iii) in the financial statement regarding
management assessment on certain matters relating to the provident fund,

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, Services tax, Excise duty, Sales
tax, Customs duty and Value added tax as on March 31, 2021 on account of
disputes. Details of dues of Income-tax which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2021 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the | Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum
Statute the Dues involved (Rs. | unpaid which the where
in lacs) (Rs in lacs) | amount dispute is
relates pending
Income Tax Income-tax 102.82 102.82 (A/Y) 2009-10, | High Court
Act, 1961 2011-12
Income Tax Income-tax 71.19 60.51 (A/Y) 2013-14 | CIT
_Act, 1961 (Appeals)
Income Tax Income-tax 39.87 39.87 (A/Y) 2012-13, | Income Tax
Act, 1961 2014-15 Appellate
Tribunal |

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institutions, banks and Government. The Company has not issued any debentures.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money
raised by way of term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for
the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments),
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()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 7 of the Companies (Appointment and
remuneration of Managerial personnel) rules, 2014.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered Into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or directors of its holding, subsidiary company or persons connected with them and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366 W/W-100018)

Jip W

Chartered Vikas Khurana

Accountants

Place: Gurugram
Date: May 17, 2021

Partner
(Membership No. 503760)
UDIN: 21503760AAAABF1470



Malana Power Company Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars '::’:e As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
ASSETS
1 Non-current assets
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3 10,686.99 11,063.67
(b) Intangible assets 4 6.21 2435
(c) Financial assets
(i) Investments 5 104,471.45 49,295.56
(ii} Trade receivables 10 475.39 395.35
(iii) Loans 6 14,619.17 46,409.31
(iv} Others 7 4,923.14 " 34,533.09
(d) Non-current tax assets 13 51.60 66.91
(e) Other non-current assets 8 8.00 :
135,241.95 141,788.24
2 Current assets
{a) Inventories 9 309.00 331.06
{b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 59,03 36.55
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 238.81 1,181.24
{lii) Bank balances other than {ii} above 12 2,095.18 30.18
{iv) Loans 6 15.96 25.95
(v} Others 7 A~ 15.12 9.30
{c) Other current assets 8 76.55 116.05
2,809.65 1,730.33
Total Assets 138,051.60 143,518.57
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 14,752.57 14,752.57
(b} Other equity 16 113,694.11 113,499.64
Total Equity 128,446.68 128,252.21
LIABILITIES
1 Non-current liabilitles
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 7,055.07 14,226.92
(b} Provisions 17 116.95 157.05
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 18 702,77 20.10
7,874.79 14,404.07
2 Current llabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables 19
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - E
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than mlcro and small
enterprises 290.97 211.08
(ii) Other financial liabilities 20 1,242.93 467.11
(b} Provisions 17 55.02 55.61
(c} Current tax liabillties 13 110.88 83.08
(d) Other current liabilities 21 30.33 4541
1,730.13 862.29
Total Equity and Ulabillties 138,051.60 143,518.57

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered AccountanlE \Ah-’o
\/ / Chartered

Vikas Khurana - Loumants
Partner

Place :
Date :

The accompanylng notes are an Integral part of the standalone financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Malana Power Company lelted -

v Lv\/-\f\/'\f_

Ravi Jhunjhunwala
Chalrman and Managlng Director
DIN:-00060972

N:-00322834
Place : ﬁ/”bﬁ—
Date:Ma/l /g)gj)’/

Rahul Varshney
Director
DIN:-03516721

/..--—‘

Al &
rvind Gupta

Company Secrdary
M. No.:-F7690




Malana Power Company Limited

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Rs. In iakhs)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
I Revenue from operations 22 7,348.08 9,255.62
Il Other Income 23 1,752.97 5,007.65
Il Total Income (1+11) 9,101.05 14,263.27
IV Expenses
Wheeling cost 691.93 644.55
Open access charges 573.14 473.61
Employee benefits expense 24 1,183.67 1,270.88
Finance costs 25 1,310.57 1,440.69
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 26 452.95 440,12
Other expenses 27 1,343.34 1,305.94
Total expenses 5,555.60 5,575.79
V  Profit before tax (I-Iv) 3,545.45 8,687.48
VI Tax expense/(benefit)
(a) Current tax expense 28 1,135.50 2,638.20
(b) Deferred tax (credit) 28 (44.15) (44.41)
(c) Tax related to earlier years 28 208.45 -
Income tax expense 1,299.80 2,593.79
VIl Profit for the year (V-VI) 2,245.65 6,093.69
VIIl Other comprehensive Income
Items that will not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
-Re-measurement (losses)/gains on defined benefit plans 20.01 (32.63)
-lnc.ome Tax rglatmg Re-measurement {losses)/gains on (5.83) 9.50
defined benefit plans
Other comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 14.18 (23.13)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (Vii+vin) 2,259.83 6,070.56
Earnings per equity share (of Rs.10/- each)
Basic 29 1.52 4,13
Diluted 29 1.52 4.13
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone flnancial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Malana Power Company Limited
W’L v /
() ¢
~ LA /. .
Vikas Khurana Ravi Jhunjhunwala Rahul Varshney
Partner Chairman and Managing Director Director
DIN:-00060972 DIN:-03516721
¢
\ L.b’
4 ind Gupta
xecutive Director, CEO and CFO Company Secretary
DIN:-00322834 M.No.:-I'7690
Place : q‘ eqes\ Place : Nﬁ/ﬂﬁ' \NER C
Date : Date : 12 9e.
1 a M‘-’r/ r )7’
1}

z
:




Malana Power Company Limited

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31,2021

(Rs. in lakhs)

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 3,545.45 8,687.48
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 452.95 440.12
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1.45) (1.44)
Finance cost 1,310.57 1,440.69
Interest income (1,488.84) (4,848.26)
Working Capital Adjustments:
{Increase) in trade receivables (102.52) (33.98)
Decrease in financial assets - loans 20.13 14.50
Decrease/{Increase) in other financial assets 3.78 (1,816.75)
Decrease in other current assets 31.50 74.76
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories 22,06 (54.06)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables 79.89 (439.67)
Increase in other financial liabilities 5.35 2.64
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions (20.68) 102.77
(Decrease)/Increase in other current liabilities (15.08) 3.43
Cash generated from operations 3,843.11 3,572.23
Income-tax paid {578.01) (1,601.92)
Net cash flow from Operating Activities 3,265.10 1,970.31
B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment. (63.36) (52.18)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 6.68 11.63
Interest received 7,693.30 569.00
Fixed deposits placed during the year (17,660.00}) -
Fixed deposit matured during the year 15,595.00 -
Net cash flow from Investing Activities 5,571.62 528.45
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Repayments of borrowings (6,401.38) (434.56)
Interim dividend paid during the year (2,065.36) -
Interest paid (1,312.41) (1,440.70)
Net cash (used) in financing activities (9,779.15) (1,875.26)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalent (942.43) 623.50
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year 1,181.24 557.74
Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the year (Refer Note No.11) 238,81 1,181.24

As per our report of even date attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Chartered

Vikas Khurana ccountants

Partner

Place : g“

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financlal statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Malana Power Company Limited =

Lr\_/‘\/" ~

L
Ravl Jhunjhunwala

Chalrman and Managing Director
DIN:-00060972

[N

Executive Director, CEO and CFQ
:-00322834
!/
Place: A®7DH~

Date : Ma}’ /"(/ 9—0)—/

Rahu?‘glé

Director
DIN:-03516721

: (A

Arvind Gup!
Company Secfetary
M.No.:-F7690

Date : \“\ a\




Malana Power Company Limited

Standalone Statement of Changes In Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021

(a) Equity share Capital

Partlculars

Number of shares

(in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Equity shares of Rs 10 each Issued, subscribed and fully paicl
As at April 1, 2019 1,475.26 14,752.57
Changes in Equity share capital during the year = .
As at March 31, 2020 1,475.26 14,752,57
Changes in Equity share capital during the year = -
As at March 31, 2021 1,475.26 14,752.57

{b) Other Equity (Rs. in lakhs)
Other Equity
Total
L LLE Other Comprehensive ota
Securltles premium Retained earnings
Income
As at April 1, 2019 (a) 32,545.67 74,912.61 {29.20) 107,429.08
Profit during the year . 6,093.69 - 6,093.69
Other comprehensive loss during the year, net of tax - - {23.13) (23.13)
Total comprehensive Income for the year (b) - 6,093.69 (23.13 6,070.56
As at March 31, 2020 (c=a+b) 32,545.67 81,006.30 (52.33) 113,499.64
Profit during the year - 2,245.65 - 2,245.65
Other comprehensive income during the year, net of tax - - 14.18 14.18
Total comprehensive income for the year (d) - 2,245.65 14.18 2,259.83
Interim dividend paid during the year (including dividend distribution
tax) [Refer Note 39] (e) - (2,065.36) - {2,065.36)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 (c+d+e) 32,545.67 81,186,559 (38.15) 113,694.11

dal r

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the
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Malana Power Company Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1 Corporate information

Malana Power Company Limited (hereinafier referred W as ‘the Company’) is engaged in the generation of
hydroelectric power and development of hydro power projects. The Company has set up 86 MW hydroelectric power
generation project. The Company has the hecessary permission from the Government of Himachal Pradesh (o own,
operate & maintain the project and sell power for a period of forty years from (he date of commercial operation i.e. July
5. 2001 with the option to avail a further extension for a maximum period of twenty vears after renegoliation of terms
and conditions,

The Company is a company limited by shares incorporated in India. Its parent and ultimate holding Company is
Bhilwara Energy Limited.

2 Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statement

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other aceounting principles generally
accepted in India. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where
different basis is mentioned in accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange of goods and services.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in
use.

Amendments to Ind AS I and Ind AS 8 - Definition of "material

The Company has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8. The amendments make the definition of
material in Ind AS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in
Ind ASs. The concept of ‘obscuring’ material information with immaterial information has been included as part
ol the new definition.

The threshold for materiality influencing users has been changed from ‘could influence' to 'could reasonably be
expected to influence'. The definition of material in Ind AS 8 has been replaced by a reference to the definition of
malerial in Ind AS 1. In addition, the MCA amended other standards that contain the definition of 'material' or
refer to the term 'material’ to ensure consistency,

The adoption of the amendment had no impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial
statements.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
a.  Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period,
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty aboutl these assumptions and estimates could resull in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on .an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of revision and future period if the revision affects boths current and future periods.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments:
The areas involving critical estimates and Jjudgments are:

[y
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Malana Power Company Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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Service Concession Arrangements

Management has assessed applicability of Appendix D of Ind AS 115: Service Coneession Arrangements
to power distribution arrangements entered into by the Company. In assessing the applicability,
management has exercised significant Jjudgment in relation to the underlying ownetship of the asset, terms
of the power distribution arrangements entered with the grantor, ability to determine prices, fair value of
construction service, assessment of right to granted cash, significant residual interest in the infrastructure,
ete. Based on detailed evaluation, management has determined that this arrangement does not meet the
criterion for recognition as service concession arrangements.

Useful lives and residual value of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and Investment
Properties

Useful life and residual value are determined by the management based on a technical evaluation
considering nature of asset, past experience, estimated usage of the assct, vendor’s advice etc and same is
teviewed periodically, including at each financial year end.

Deferred tax assets

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets including MAT credit at the end of each
reporting period and recognized to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to utilize the deferred tax asset including MAT.

Claims and Litigations

The Company is the subject of lawsuits and claims arising in the ordinary course of business from time to
time. The Company reviews any such legal proceedings and claims on an ongoing basis and follow
appropriate accounting guidance when making accrual and disclosure decisions. The Company establishes
accruals for those contingencies where the incurrence of a loss is probable and can be reasonably
estimated, and it discloses the amount accrued and the amount of a reasonably possible loss in excess of
the amount accrued, if such disclosure is necessary for the Company’s financial statements to not be
misleading. To estimate whether a loss contingency should be accrued by a charge to income, the
Company evaluates, among other factors, the degree of probability of an unfavourable outcome and the
ability to make a reasonable estimate of the amount of the oss. The Company does not record liabilities
when the likelihood that the liability has been incurred is probable, but the amount cannot be reasonably
estimated. Based upon present information, the Company determined that there were no matters that
required an accrual as of March 31, 2021 other than the accruals already recognized, nor were there any
asserted or unasserted claims for which material losses are reasonably possible.

Impairment Assessment
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment in subsidiary
and loan to subsidiary to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least annually and whenever
there is an indication at the end of a reporting period that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,

b. Revenue Recognition

The Company recognise revenue at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The Company’s sales revenue is divided into following categories:

Revenue from generation and supply of Power (“Revenue from Power Supply”):
Revenue from sale of power is recognised when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the fee is

fixed or determinable, energy is supplied (i.e. performance obligation is satisfied) and collectability is
reasonably assured. The revenues from generation and supply of power is recognised at the amount of
which the entity has a right to invoice which coincides with the electricity scheduled to be transmitted to
the customers, The difference between scheduled and actual transmitted energy is recognized as
Unscheduled Interchange (U/T) charges and are adjusted with the revenue recognized on accrual basis.

In an arrangements where the Company sells power on an exchange, the exchange is determined to be the

customer. This is based on the fact that the Company has enforceable contracts with the exchanges.

Revenue from sharing of Transmission line (“Transmission Income”):

Revenue is recognized on the basis of periodic billing to consumers / state transmission utility and is
measured based on the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled from a customer, net of
returns and allowances, discounts, volume rebates and cash discounts excluding taxes or duties collected
on behalf of the government.

Voluntary emission rights (VER) and I-REC

Revenue is recognized on registration and successful authentication of carbon emission reductions.
Other Income

Interest

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable. Interest Income is included under the head ‘Other Income’ in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

¢. Inventory Valuation

Inventories comprising of components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value,

ﬂ:har&ered
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

d. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable
purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates. It includes other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset afier its use is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Subsequent expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalized only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the company and the costs of the item can
be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss when
incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively.

Depreciation:

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting

period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The Company has used the following useful life to provide depreciation on its Property, Plant and
Equipment.

Assets Useful life (Years)

Buildings other than factory buildings 60
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Plant and Machinery used in generation, transmission and distribution 40
Hydraulic Works (Dam, Reservoir, Barrage etc) 40
Factory Buildings 30
Plant and Machinery 15
Electrical Installations 10
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Roads 10
Vehicles 8
Computers and Data processing equipment's 3-6
Office equipment's 5

e. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately arc measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any Intangible assets are amortized on a straight line basis over the estimated useful
economic life of 3 to 5 years. The Company has considered the useful life of 3 years to provide
amortization on Software.

The intangible assets are assessed for impairment whenever there is indication that the intangible assets
may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recoghized in the Statement of profit
and loss when the asset is derecognized.

f. Leases
The Company assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:
(1) The contract involves the use of an identified asset,
(2) The Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset,
(3) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Company as a lessee
The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease

term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall
comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the
commencement date over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right-of-use
assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their cartying amounts may not be

recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments over the lease term,
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate, For
leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company adopts the incremental borrowing rate for the
entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease
payments, exercise price of a purchase option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The
lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments.

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the tight-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further
reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining amount of the
re-measurement in statement of profit and loss,

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to
be of low value. The lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as

an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases are recognized as
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When the cartying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is writien down to its recoverable
amount.
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In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
weighted average cost of capital that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators,

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations cover the useful life of the project.

Impairment losses (if any) are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss,

For impairment of assets, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount,

h. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

VyVYYY

Equity instrument in subsidiary carried at cost.
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in the finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI,
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

As at March 31, 2021, the Company does not have any debt instrument measured at FVTPL or FVTOCL

Equity investments

All equity investment (other than equity investment in subsidiary) in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at
fair value. Equity instruments in subsidiary are carried at cost in financial Statements less impairments, if
any. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company's standalone balance sheet) when:

P The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

>  When the Company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss. In
addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in a separate component of equity is reclassified to profit or loss. In
contrast, on derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument which the Company has elected on
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in a separate

component of equity is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained earnings.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement

and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk €xposure:
a) Financial asscts that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e. g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.
b) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from
its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life
of a financial instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilitics are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantees issued by the Company on behalf of subsidiary company are integral part of the debt
instrument. Hence, no accounting has been done separately in the standalone financial statements.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets
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The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial
liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a
change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of
external or internal changes which are significant to the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to
perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it
applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The company does not restate
any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

i. Foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional

currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date,

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or
loss, respectively).

j- Retirement and other employee benefits

1 Defined Contribution Plan:

1. Provident Fund: Contribution are made to the regulatory authorities and are recognised as
employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss as and when due. This benefits is
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations,
apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

2. Superannuation Fund: Contribution towards Superannuation Fund is administered by a trust set up
by the Company, which is recognized by the Income Tax authorities. Such benefits are classified as
Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the
contributions made on a monthly basis.

2 Defined Benefit Plan:
Gratuity
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The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust
maintained with ICICI Prudential Life Insurance company Limited and Bajaj Allianz. The liabilities
with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes to the Company Gratuity
Scheme. The difference, if any, between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the
year end and the balance of funds with ICICI Prudential Life Insurance company Limited and Bajaj
Allianz is provided for as assets/ (liability) in the books. Net interest is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Future salary increases and pension
increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries. Further details
about the assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are given in notes to standalone
financial statements.

The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employee
benefit expense in statement of profit or loss:

* Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements

* Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

3 Other Long Term Employee Benefits:

Compensated Absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-
term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional
amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date. The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long term compensated
absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per
projected unit credit method at the year-end.

k. Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax
rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities. Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised
in equity and not in the statement of profit and loss, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax.
The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for
which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement”
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not have convincing
evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Chwfered
' Accountants
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the reporting date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purpose at
reporting date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or
expense in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date, A deferred income tax
asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax assets to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

‘The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seitle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

m. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

n. Contingent Liability
A Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control
of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company

does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

o. Earning per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to

equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to

equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs specifically relating to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalized as patt of the cost of the
asset. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they
are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Company that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed

the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,

Fair Value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on

the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

® In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

As on the reporting date, the Company does not have any financial instrument which has been measured
either through FVTPL or FVTOCI.

Current versus Non-Current

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
1 Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
2 Held primarily for the purpose of trading
3 Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
1 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is current when:
1 It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
2 ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading
3 Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
4 There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

s. Going Concern
The directors here, at the time of approving the standalone financial statements, a reasonable expectation
that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the standalone financial
statements.

t. Subsequent events
Based on the nature of the event, the Company identifies the events occurring between the balance sheet

date and the date on which the financial statements are approved as ‘Adjusting Event’ and ‘Non-adjusting
event’. Adjustments to assets and liabilities are made for events occurring after the balance sheet date that
provide additional information materially affecting the determination of the amounts relating to conditions
existing at the balance sheet date or because of statutory requirements or because of their special nature.
For non-adjusting events, the Company may provide a disclosure in the financial statements considering
the nature of the transaction.
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Malnua Power Compnny Limited

Notes To The Standalone Financial S For The Year Ended March 31, 2021
5. lnweatminints (Moo Cubreiit
Partlculars As ot March 31, 1071 Ay ot March 31, 2020
B UL LE T SS—— E—.. L LR T L
Quantity [Noa.) Amotmt (il I lahba) ity (Mos.} Amannt [t in lakhs]
Wnnuated inwestmont. i sulisidlary st cost
46,20,55, 640 {Pawviuy yuds 45,24 55.60(1] equity shares of Rs,10 each fully pald of AD Hydro Power Limited 492,955,640 49,295.56 492,955,640 49,295.56
linciutding beneficial owner of 49,890 shares)
inbeddiid with securlty irustee’on behalf of lenders of AD Hydro Power Limited)
At Deemed Equity Investment In subslidlary Company [Refer Note 35 (Ii}| 55,175.89 .
Foral 32,355,600 1007185 LD 352855 |
G, Lo [Fls. b lakhs)
Non Current Clapvient
 Partlcul —_
artieuters As at March 31, 2021 Aaat March 31, 2021 | As at March 31, 3010
L consl Rrood at amorllsed cost|
a) Security deposits . -
b} Loan to subsidlary companyl 46,380.00 *
Less: Reclassifled to Deemed Equity investment in subsidlary Company [Refer Note 35 [(})] 31 -
Net loans to substdlary Campany 14,600,00 46,380.00
| Laam ha emolayees 15.15 25.29 1596 25.95
Total 14,619.17 A6, 409,01 15.96 25,95
WThe faan granted Is pepayatile only once all aliigations (o the outalde lendars have been it andt dischargad In full apiel e interest thisean is gayabila as per e canditinns stipulated in the Haancing ogreaments with
the subsidlary, Also Refer note 35 {1} and (ll}
F. Ot finanglal dssets ATes It hahtia)
Non-Current Currant
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020 A an Mireh !i‘ 00
a} Advance for Bara Banghal project (Including Rs 681 B4 lakhs {previous year Rs 681,84 lakhs) towards
eeiuibtancy and other expenses on the profect| {Refer Note no. 34)
- Unsecured, consldered good 3,060 00 3,060.00 » *
« Unsecured, considered doubtful 3,741.84 3,741.84
Less 1 Provislon against upfront premium {3,741 84) {3,741.84) .
Tatal (a) 3,060.00 3,060.00
1] Others - Unsecured, considered good
» Recoverable from Himachal Pradesh State Electriclly Board Limited [Net)® 1,863.14 1,866.92 = -
+ Interesl accrued on banks deposlits - . 1512 9.30
- Interest accrued on loan glven to subsidiary companyh 23,395.89 29,606.17 . -
Less: Reclassifled to Deemed Equity investmenl In subsldlary Company [Refer Note 35 {Il)) 23,395 89 -
Net Inlerest accrued on loan given 10 subsidlary Company = 29,606.17
Tatal {b) 1,863.14 . g 1511 a0
Tatal (a+h) L} 14 34,533.09 1517 9.30

* Inredarion o wheeBinj charges mattor {as fulfy describied in Note 31.1(11)), during ealinr years, the High Cour of Himachal Pradish tirectad the Eompany ("MPEL) 1o deposit Rs. 1000 Lokl with tha mglstry of the
Court, which was deposlted by MPCL on January 24, 2018. Therealter, Hon'ble Supreme Court vide order dated July 22, 2019 directed MPCL 1o further deposi Rs. 1,816.75 lakhs which MPCL deposited on August 14,
2019. Also, the Company has payable balance to HPSEBL related 1o wheellng charges amounting Rs. 953,61 Lakhs as on March 31, 2021 which has been off setted by the Company agalnst the aforementioned deposits as
HPSEBL has withdrawn Rs. 1,000 lakhs from the High court of Himachal Pradesh (as It was permitled Lo do so}. Net balance of Rs, 1,863,14 Lakhs {Previous year Rs. 1,866.92 lakhs) has been disclosed In olher linanclal
assets ay on March 31, 2021

#The loan granted is repayable only once all obligatlon to the oultslde lenders have been pald and discharged In full and the Interest thereon is payable as per the condillons slipulated In the lnancing agreements with
the subsldiary. Also Reler note 35 (i} and {li).

I Other tvon eurrent and currpt sssets LN PTEY
Mo - current Larrent
Partlculars March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 A at Morch 31, 2001 | As at March 31, 30
thers
- Advances recoverable - - 10,22 48.20
- Prepald expenses 8.00 - 50.84 46.25
- Advances 1o emplovees - - 16 40 2160
Total othar sssets B0 . 76.55 11605

8. Inventarios (Loweer of cast and nat eosliiaiie vahie) {fta. s Falha)
Tartleula As it March 33 3031 | As 2t March 31, X

Stores and spares® 13108

Total EET 05

* iikeludes store bring with third parlles £0,43 [akhs [pravinus vear X 1.88 la

10, erehabl Rt in takhs)

Mo - eurrant® Current

Particulars Ad ot March 31, 2071 As at Marh 31, 2000 A at March 31,2071 | Aval March 31, 2020

Trade recelvable

Unsecured, considered good” 47539 39535 59.03 AR5
115_1% m 03 ﬂ. 5

“The Company has receivables Balénte from HPSEBL for usage of transmisston ine tmeanting Ry, 475,39 Lakim [Fraviom vear Rs. 43545 1akls), Tha amaunt is fufly recoverablo which will be received ance the matler
mentlened in footnote to Note 7{b) and 31.1{li} will be finally disposed off.

Nole : The average credll perlod for the Company's from Ity and buslness Is in the range of 5 10 7 days
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Pailculars A At March 33, 2021
[al alances with banks ;
- In Current Accounts 76.08 202.28
= In Deposil Accounts {with orlginal maturity less than 3 months) 159.59 975.00

|14} a5l on hand 314 3.96
|Tatal 230681

12 Bank bialances (sthet than cach and cash oeuivalanis | {fs i Inkhs)

Currant

Partheudits As ot Mnrch 31, 7021 | A ot March 31, 1000
In Deposlt Accaunts

() Earmarked { kept as margin money agalnst payment of wheellng charges) 30.18 3018
(b} In deposit account 2,065.00

Total 2,005.108 30.18
13, Tuw sasats / (iabifitias) M. It Lk

M - Cuirrent Current |

Particulars A ot Morch 31, 2001 As at March 31, 2020 A at Moreh 31, 2021 | Ad ot Maich 31, 2020
Advance Income Tax (net of provislons of Rs, 9,210.23 lakhs, Rs. 9,767.52 lakhs In 2019-20) 51.60 66.91 -

Provislon for Income Tax - - 110.88)

Vi assets [ (Habliitio) S1.R0 (R3] {10080

14. Non-Current Borrowlngs

R, 11 Lkl
Moa -

Partlculars Ay at March 31, 2021

Secured-Measured at amortised cost

Term Loans

From banks {secured} 3.593.61 .

From financlal Institutlon {secured} 4,666.48 14,661.47

Currenl Maturltles of long term borrowIngs # {1,205.02) {434 55)

Total 7,055.07 1422692

Wniefer Naza 20

14.1 Summary of borrowlnas arrangements

() The terms of repayment of outstanding of term loans are staled below:

Name of lender Carrylng Value | Last Maturlty Data Terms of repayment

IRs. In lakhs)
Balance loan amount Is repayable In structured remalning 30 quarterl,
1€1C) Bank Limiled 3,593.61 |September-28 i e oS R e e SOHCEY
T [V Aty g T4 i
NIIF Infrastructure Vinanca Umited 4,666.48 [March-27 e e L S T T
Installments
Tatal B,260.09 i

Securlly terms ;
1) 1C1C) Bank Limited

The Company has taken Indlan Rupee lerm loans from ICICI Bank Limited carrying Interest @ 7.15% per annum (previous year NII) fixed for one year, thereafter Hoallng rate of "I-MCLR-3M" which shall reset al the end
of every 3 months and "Spread” at the end of every 1 year secured agalnst the fIrst parl passu morigage of all immovable propertles (excluding any forest land), charge by way of hypothecation of all borcower's movable
lixed assels, both present and future, a first parl passu charge by way of hypothecation on all ther book debts, both present and future and first parl passu charge on all 1ha borrower's bank accounts.

fikk MHF tfrastructare Finance Lid

The Company has taken Indlan Rupee term [oans from NIIF Infrastruclure Finance Ltd. carrying Inlerest @ 9 65%

movable and Immovable assets both present and future on parl passu basls,

(1) 1DBI Trusteeshlp Services Limited Is acting as the Security Trustee on behalf of the above two lenders and the charge is Jolntly crealed In Its favour.

per annum (previous Year @9.65%) fixed for 5 years secured agalnst first mortgage and charga on Lhe
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15  Share capltal

{Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Authorised
16,00,00,000 (previous year 16,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 16,000.00 16,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully pald-up
14,75,25,731 (previous year 14,75,25,731 ) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully pald 14,752.57 14,752.57
Tatal 14,752.57 14,752.57
(a) Reconclllation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Partlculars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Rs. In lakhs! (Rs. In lakhs)

Shares outstanding at the beginning of tha year 147,525,731 14,752.57 147,525,731 14,752.57
Shares lssued duripg the year . - o 3
shares cutstaniiing at the end of the year 147,525,731 14,752.57 147,525,731 14,752.57

(b) Terms/rlghts attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of e
Board of Directors Is subject to the approval of the shareholders In the ensulng Annual Gerneral Meeting.

quity shares is entitled to one vote per share, The final dividend proposed by the

assets of the C y, after distribution of all preferentlal amounts. The

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive r
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders,

{¢] Shares held by holding

As at March 31, 2021 AsatMarch3t 2020 |
Partlculars No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

Rs. In lakhs] Rs. In lakhs’

Ahilwara Energy Limited, the holding company 75,238,123 7,523.80 75,238,123 7,523.80
[d) Betails of shareholders holding more than 5% shares In the Company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 |
Particulars No, of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holdlng,
Name of the Share Holders
fhilwara Energy Limited 75,238,123 51.00% 75,238,123 51.00%
Statkraft Holcllngmpme Pte Limited 72&7,608 49.00% 72,287,608 49.00%

As per the records of the Company,

16 Other Equl!r

Including Its register of shareholders/members, the above sharehalding represents both legal & beneficlal ownership of shares,

[Particulars

(R, In lakhs)

(i) Securitios premium

Balance as at March 31, 2019
Additions during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2020
Additions durlng the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021

32,545.67

32,545.67

32,545.67

{Rs, In lakhs)

{li) Retained earnings

Balance as at March 31, 2019 74,883.41
Profit for the year 6,093.69
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax {23.13)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 80,953.97
Profit for the year 2,245.65
Other comprehensive prafit for the year, net of tax 14.18
Interim dividend pald during the year (Rs. 1.40 per share) [2.065.36)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 B1,148.44

Nature and Description of Reserves:

{i)  Securltles Premium:-

Securities Premium Is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised onl!
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retalned earnings:-

Retalned earnings constitute the accumulated profits earned by the company till date,
shareholdiers.

(i)
less dividend

y for limited purposes such as Issuance of bonus shares In accordance with the

(including dividend distribution tax) and other distribution made to
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17. Provisions

Aha. in lakis]

Nan - gurrong __Curtem
Partlculars Aa st Mareh 31, 2021 A at Barch 33, 2000 As st facch 31, 3021 | As at March 31, 2020
Pravislan for emeioie Banatits
Provision for graluily {Refer Note No. 33.3) - 0 1.28 5071
Provislon for compensated absences {Refer Note No. 33,3) 116 95 157.05 5374 4.90
Tatal 116.9% 157.05 55.02 55.01
AR Doferred 15 o fiakillvies (net] At I fahdis)

Particulars

A, Tax effects of ltems constituting deferred tax llabllity:
Property, plant & equipment
Totul Diforred tax tabliity (Al

Ehthiees
MAT Credil entilement
Tatal Dufersod tax asset {B)

Meet Delerrod tax {sasuty

Az ar March 33, 2021 | fs ot March 31, 3020

18, Traile payulbles =
Particulars

AL

2,491,57
249157 2,547.46
I Tax affects of items constituting deferred tax assets:

B2.79) {70.36}

[1.935.011 {2.457.00}

(1,788.80) (2,527.36)

Torii 010

{fs. bn Fakihs)

Current

As ot Mareh 31, 7021

TFradit pavable
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises {Refer note below )

- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

L Av 3t Muich 31, 2020

290.97 211.08
Tl 200,67 111,00 |
"There are no amounts which sre feaulred to bie transforrad to the Investas Education and Protectinn Fund Ly the Company,
Note: Disclosures required under Sectlon 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
{ltx I akehs )
Particutars As at Asat
larch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
The princlpal amount remalning unpald to any supplier as at the end of the year - -
The interest due on principal amount remalning unpald to any suppller as al the end of the . .
vear
The amount of Interest pald by the Company In terms of sectlon 16 of the Micro, Small and pe .
Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), along with the amount of the
payment made to the suppller beyond the appolnted day during the year
The amount of Interest due and payable for the period of defay In making payment {which & -
have been pald but beyond the appolnted day during the year) but without adding Lhe
Intarest noecilied yndar ths MEMED Act
The amount of Interest accrued and remalning unpaid at the end of the year - =
The amount of further Inlerest remalning due and payable even in the succeeding years, - .
unlll such dale when the Interest dues as above are actually pald to the small enlerprise, for
the purpose of asa under the MSMED Act
Note: Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been delermined to the extent such partles have been Identified on the basls of
collected by the This has been relled upon by the auditors.
20, Bther linsnclal liabi s I lakhs)
Partlculars Current
As at Mareh 31,2021 | Aot March 31, 200
a) Current maturllles of long term borrowings {Refer note 14} 1,205.02 434,55
b} Sundry deposlits 3597 28.78
<) Interest accrued bul not due on loan from financlal Institution 1.94 78
Total — 1,242.93 A67.11
21 Other lsbilitias [Rs. in lakhs)
Partlculars Current

As ar March 13, 2021 | As at March 33, 2020

45,41

Stitiitory llabilities
|Inlal

30,33

Aas5.41
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22, Revenue from operatlons

{Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from power supply and transmisslon Income
a) Revenue from power supply (gross) 7,235.35 9,142.89
b) Revenue frofm Transmission income {gross) 112.73 112.73
Revenue from Power supply and transmisslon income (net) 7,348.08 9,255.62
23, Other income
{Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Interest income
1} Financial assets held at amortised cost
- Interest on bank deposits 93.56 92.68
- Interest on Subordinate debt [Refer Note No. 35 {ii)] 1,394.30 4,753.95
- Interest on employee loan 0.98 1.63
i) Others
- Interest on income tax refund 1.84 E
b) Others non operating Income
- Sale of emission reductions 117.20 85.38
- Insurance claim 87.19 64.94
- Miscellaneous income 56.45 7.63
c) Others gain and losses E
- Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 145 1.44
Total 1,752.97 5,007.65
24, Employee benefits exp {Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Salaries, wages and bonus 1,073.92 1,132.79
b) Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note No. 33.1) 45,57 52.22
c) Gratuity expenses (Refer Note No, 33.3) 21.29 18.08
d) Compensated absences expenses (Refer Note No. 33.3) 13.37 35.81
€) Workmen and staff welfare expenses 29.52 31,98
Total 1,183.67 1,270.88
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Notes To The Standalone Financial Statements For The Year Ended March 31, 2021

25. Finance costs

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

a) Interest cost

- Interest on term loans 1,296.21 1,440.29
- Interest on delayed payment of Income Tax 14.00 -
b) Other Borrowing cost

- Bank charges 0.36 0.40
Total 1,310.57 1,440.69

26. Depreclation and amortisation expenses

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 434,81 430.76
b) Amortisation of intangible assets 18.14 9.36
Total 452.95 440.12
27. Other expense
(Rs. in Iakhs[
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Stores, spares and other consumables 383.64 194.14
Rent expenses 16.71 16.71
Power and fuel 42,08 42.59
Repair and maintenance
- Buildings 20.07 22.62
- Plant and machinery 150.29 276.74
- Others 13.73 13.82
Rates and taxes 0.32 0.32
Insurance 137.15 125.05
Payment to auditor 19.29 19.58
Communication costs 9.78 10.23
Printing and stationery 5.59 5.32
Travelling and conveyance 51.06 66.36
Membership fees and subscriptions 17.48 4.55
Legal and professional fees 146.39 174.70
Social welfare expenses 1.83 12.01
CSR expenses 188.70 193.31
Miscellaneous expenses 139.23 127.89
Total 1,343.34 1,305.94
Notes :
(i) Payment to statutory auditors comprise {including Indlrect taxes)
- Fees for Statutory Audit 10.03 10.03
- Fees for Limited Review 8.85 8.85
- For reimbursement of expenses 0.41 0.70
TOTAL 19.29 19.58
(il) Corporate social responsibility expenditure
Amount required to be spend as per section 135 of the Act 188.70 181.05
Amount spent during the year on :
- Construction / acquisition of any asset 8.85 60.09
- Other purpose 51,85 133.22
TOTAL 60.70 193.31

Amount unspent during the year is Rs. 128 lakhs (Previous year Rs. Nil)
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28. Income tax expense

a) Income tax recognlsed in statement of profit and loss

(Rs. In lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current tax 1,135.50 2,638.20
Deferred tax (44.15) (44.41)
Tax related to earlier years 208.45 =
Total Income tax {credit)/expenses recognised In the current perlod 1,299.80 2,593.79
b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconclled to the profit before tax as follows:
(Rs. In lakhs)
PARICULARS For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Accounting profit before tax 3,545.45 8,687.48
Accounting Profit before Income Tax 3,545.45 8,687.48
At India's statutory Income tax rate of 29.12% 1,032.44 2,529.79
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for determining taxable profits 79.38 56.29
Tax effect of income from sale of emission reductions certificates taxable at lower rate (20.47) (2.11)
Prior year tax effect on deferred tax liability - 9.82
Tax related to earlier years 208.45 =
Income tax expenses reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 1,299.80 2,593.79
29, Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company (Rs. in lakhs) (A} 2,245.65 6,093.69
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of basic and diluted earning per 1,475.26 1,475.26
share {No. of shares in lakhs} (B}
Basic and dlluted earning per share (A/B) 1.52 4,13

king
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30 Segment Reporting

The Company’s activities during the year involved generation of the hydro power (Refer Note 1). Also, the Company generates income from usage of its owned
transmission line. Considering the nature of Company’s business and operations, there are no separate reportable segments (business and/ or geographical) in accordance
with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 108 ‘Segment Reporting’. The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results as one single
segment for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other
than those already provided in the financial statements.

31 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extend not provided for)

31.1 Contingent Liabilities

(i) lInrespect of assessment years 2009-10 to 2014-15, the Assessing Officer (AO) had raised demands aggregating to Rs 213.87 lakhs. The demand was based
on dissallowance of expenses under section 14A of the Income-tax Act, 1961 under MAT computation. The AO disallowed proportionate amount of
deduction under section 80-IA stating that the investments made by the Company in the subsidiary is capable to earn exempted dividend income. Further,
AQ disallowed and denied Company's claim to treat the income from carbon credit as capital receipts. Based upon the favourable order passed by the
Income tax authorities in the past in certain assessment year’s appeal proceedings at the level of High court and ITAT, the Company is of the view that the

above said demands are not tenable and hence no provision is required in the financial statements,

(ii) On April 27, 2019, the Company received a provisional net demand of Rs. 8,069 lakhs in relation to wheeling charges for the period April 01, 2008 to
March 31, 2019 from Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board Limited (HPSEBL) based on an order passed by the Himachal Pradesh Electricity
Regulatory Commission (HPERC), which in the opinion of the Company is not in accordance with the agreement entered between the Company and
HPSEB (now HPSEBL) in August 1999. In this regard, the Company has paid under protest an amount of Rs. 2,817 lakhs. Based on the legal opinion
obtained, the Company is of the view that demand is not legally tenable and would not result in any material liability on the Company for the period on or
before March, 2019 and accordingly has filed an appeal before Appellate tribunal (APTEL), Electricity at New Delhi, which is pending adjudication with
APTEL. The next date for hearing is scheduled for May 24, 2021.

(iii) Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, there are various interpretation issues and thus is in the process of evaluating the impact of the
recent Supreme Court Judgment in the case of “Vivekananda Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (I1I), West Bengal in relation to non-
exclusion of certain allowances from the definition of “basis wages” of the relevant employees for the purpose of determining contribution to provident
fund under the Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952.

Pending issuance of guidelines by the regulatory authorities on the application of this ruling, the impact on the Company for the previous periods, if any,
cannot be ascertained.

(iv) Financial Guarantee
The Company has provided Corporate/Default Guarantee to Fls/Banks for the loans extended by them to AD Hydro Power Limited (subsidiary company).

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particul As at March 31, | As at March 31,
arfieutars 2021 2020
a) |The amount of outstanding loans covered by such guarantees 18,866.61 22,283.22
b) [Under the terms of the said guarantee the maximum amount for which the company may be contingently 3,309.47 3,416.66
liable during the next 12 months

31.2 Commitments
a) The Company has entered into agreement with Himachal Pradesh State Electricity Board (HPSEB) for 40 years to wheel or transfer energy from Bajaura
sub station to Nalagarh (i.e. interstate point - substation of Powergrid Corporation of India limited) at agreed price with the committment to provide 20% of
the deliverable energy at free of cost to HPSEB.

b) At March 31, 2021, the Company has committed for non-disposal of its investment in subsidiary AD Hydro Power Limited to its lenders (similar
commitment was there in the previous year also).

The Company does not have any long term commitments of material non-cancellable contractual commitments/contracts including derivatives contract
for which there were any material foreseeable losses

.

countants
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32 Related Party Disclosures
Dis:losures as required by Ind AS 24 — “Related Party Disclosures” are as follow:

a) Names of related parties and description of relationship

Description of relationship Name of related party
Holding Company Bhilwara Energy Limited
Subsidiary Company AD Hydro Power Limited

Enterprise having significant influence over the company Statkraft Holding Singapore PTE Limited

Fellow Subsidiary Companies Indo Canadian Consultancy Services Limited

i} Mr. Ravi Jhunjhunwala,

Chairman & Managing Director
Key Management Personnel ii) Mr. O.P Ajmera*,

Executive Director, CEO and CFO
iii) Mr. Arvind Gupta*

i) Mrs. Rita Jhunjhunwala

(wife of the Chairman & Managing Director)
ii) Mr. Riju Jhunjhunwala

(son of the Chairman& Managing Director)
iii) Mr. Rishabh Jhunjhunwala

(son of the Chairman & Managing Director)

Relatives of key management personnel

i) HEG Limited,
ii) Rajasthan Spinning & Weaving Mills Limited ("RSWM Limited")
iii) Statkratt Markets Private Limited

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key
management personnel or their relatives

i) Malana Power company Limited Employees
Gratuity Trust

ii) Malana Power company Limited Sr. Executive
Company Superannuation Scheme Trust

Employee benefit funds

*  As per Section 2(51) of the Company Act 2013, definition of Key Managerial Personnel includes Company Secretary.

b) Names and details of transaction of related parties during the year are as follows:

(g.r '
.ountams
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¢) Compensation of Key Management Personnel
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
CMD ED,CEO & cs CMD ED,CEO & cs
. CFO CFO
Particulars Total Total
Mr. Ravi Mr.OP Mr. Arvind o Mr. Ravi Mr.OP Mr. Arvind ota
Jhunjhunwala Ajmera* Gupta Jhunjhunwala Ajmera* Gupta
Shert Term Benefit# 207.84 205.86 17.87 431.57 236.67 228.60 17.67 482.94
PD;';"ed Coniibution 1127 12.20 2.01 25.48 10.84 12.20 2,01 25.05
Total 219.11 218.06 19.88 457.05 247.51 240.80 19.68 507.99

#

out of total remuneration paid to Mr. O P Ajmera, Rs. 66.07 lakhs (Previous year Rs. 66.60 lakhs) has been recovered from Bhilwara Energy Limited.
excludes post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits which is provided in the financial statements on the basis of actuarial valuation

33 Employee Benefit Plan

33.1 Defined contribution plan

i)

if)

Superannuation Fund

The Company makes Superannuation Fund contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans for eligible employees. Under the schemes, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The contributions as specified under the law are paid to
the superannuation fund set up as a trust by the Company. The Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a
monthly basis. The Company recognized Rs. 5.62 lakhs (previous year Rs. 5.37 lakhs) in the statement of profit and loss account. (refer note 24)

Provident Fund

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions which are defined contribution plan, for qualifying employees. Under the scheme Company is required
to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognized ¥45.57 lakh (previous year €52.22 lakh) in the
statement of profit and loss account. (refer note 24)

332 Details of defined benefit plan and long term employee benefit plan

i)

ii)

Gratuity Fund

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is primarily governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at
the retirement date. The gratuity plan is funded plan. The fund has the form of a trust and is governed by Trustees appointed by the Company. The Trustees
are responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for defining the investment strategy in accordance with the regulations. The funds are deployed
in recognised insurer managed funds in India. The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a
period of time based on estimates of expected gratuity payments.

Long term employee benefits plan
Compensated absence represents earned leaves. Long term compensated absence has been provided on accrual basis based on actuarial valuation.
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33.3 Disclosure required for Gratuity and Compensated absence in accordance with Ind AS-19 “Employee Benefits” are set out in the table below:

i)

ii)

iii)

iv)

Current and Non — Current classification in Balance Sheet

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Current | Non-Current Total Current Non-Current Total
Compensated absence obligation 53.74 116.95 170.69 4.90 157.05 161.95
Gratuity:
-Present value of funded defined - 383.76 - 340.56
benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets - 382.48 - = 289.85
Net defined benefit obligation 1.28 - 1.28 50.71 - 50.71
Movement in the present value of Gratuity and Compensated absences
(Rs. in lakhs)
Gratuity Compensated absences
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 As at March 31, 2020 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Preslent. value ofobhgatnon as at the 340.56 285.63 161.95 128.86
beginning of the period
[nterest Cost 22,99 2225 10.93 10.04
Current Service Cost 17.86 15.38 9.35 11.54
Benefits Paid (4.69) (11.10) (4.63) (2.71)
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation 7.03 28.39 (6.92) 14.22
Present value Qfobllgatlon as at the 383.75 340.56 170.69 161.95
End of the period
The amounts recognized in the Profit and Loss account
(Rs. in lakhs)
Gratuity Compensated absences
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31,
2021 As at March 31, 2020 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Service Cost 17.86 15.38 9.36 11.55
Net Interest Cost 342 2.70 10.93 10.04
Net actuarial (gain) / loss recognized in the - ) (6.92) 1422
period
Expense recoghized in the Income Statement 21.29 18.08 13.37 35.81
Amount recorded as Re-measurement (Gain) / Loss in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
(Rs. in lakhs)
Gratuity
Particulars
AsatMarch 31, | oot Mareh 31, 2020
2021
Actuarial (gain) / loss for the year on PBO 7.03 28.39
Actuarial (gain) /loss for the year on Asset (27.04) 424
Defined benefit (gain)/loss recognized in other comprehensive income. (20.01) 32.63
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v} Movement in the fair value of plan assets

(Rs. in lnkhs)

Gratuity

Particul

articulars LCE (3 E TR T As at March 31, 2020

2021
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 289.85 250.71
Acetual return on plan assets 46.61 15.31
Employer contribution 50.71 34.92
Benefits paid (4.69) (11.10)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 382.48 289.85
vi)  Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets)
Gratuity
Particulars As at March 31, As at March 31, 2020
2021

Government of India Securities = -
State Government secutilies - E
IHigh Quality Corporate Bonds -
Equily Shares of listed companies 5 =
Property - .
Funds Mannged by Insurer * 100% 100%
Bank Balance s -
Total 100% 100%

*  Inthe absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with Insurance Companies, the composition of each major category of plan assets, the

percentage or amount of each category to the fair value of plan assets has not been disclosed.

vii) Principal Actuarial Assumptions

Gratuity Compensated absences
Particulars AsatMareh3l, | AatMarch31,2020 | ASREMArch3l, |\ ren 31,2020
2021 2021
i) Discounting Rate 6.80 6.75 6.80 6.75
ii) Future salary Increase 5.50 5.50 5.50 5.50
i) Retirement Age (Years) 60 60 60 60

ii) Mortality rates inclusive of
provision for disability

100 % of IALM (2012-14)

100 % of IALM (2012-14)

iif) Ages Withdrawal Rate (%)
18 to 30 Years 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
30 to 45 years 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Above 45 years 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Noze:

(a) Discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Govt. of India Securities as at Balance Sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

(b) The estimate of future salary increased considered, takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, increment and other relevant factors.
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No'e:

(@)

viii) Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation

Sensitivity of gross defined benefit obligation as mentioned above, in case of change of significant assumptions would be as under:
(Rs, in lakhs)
Particular Gratuity

a) lmpact of the change in discount rate

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 383.76
Impaet due to increase ot 0.50% (10.41)
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 11.13
b) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 383.76
Impact due to increase of 0.50% 11.22
Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (10.58)

Sensitivities due to mortality & withdrawals are not material & hence impact of change not calculated.

(b)  Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & life expectancy are not applicable being

a lump sum benetit on retirement.

ix) Maturity Profile of defined benefit obligation
(Rs. in lakhs)

Expected cash flows for the next 10 years Gratuity

Uto1 Year 165.01
1to2 Year 6.36
2to 3 Year 38.09
3to4 Year 4.04
‘4 to5 Year 6.40
5to 6 Year 3.50
6 Year onwards 160.37

34 In respect of 200 MW Bara Banghal project in state of Himachal Pradesh for which the Company had bid and paid an upfront premium of Rs. 6,120 lakhs, the Company
has decided to shelve off the project as the State Hydro Power Policy is not aligned with Ministry of Environment and Forest (MOEF) Policy of Government Of India
which prohibits the implementation of a hydro power project in wild life /eco sensitive zone areas. In view of this, the Company has filed a full amount of retund claim
along with interest as per the terms and conditions of the pre-implementation agreement. Based upon the management's assessment, the amount is fully recoverable and
the Company is regularly following up with the Government of Himachal Pradesh. The provision of 50% of Rs. 3,060 lakhs has been recorded out of abandoned caution
in carlier years. However, the same shall be written back at the time of receipt of refund by the company. No further provision is considered necessary by the
management

35 Investment in Subsidiary and Loan to Subsidiary (ADHPL)

®

(if)

The Company has an investments amounting to Rs. 1,04,471.45 lakhs (including Deemed Equity investment) in AD Hydro Power Limited (subsidiary company)
and has also unsecured loan receivables amounting to Rs. 14,600 lakhs as on March 31, 2021, total balance recoverable from subsidiary company aggregating to
Rs 119,071 45 lakhs as on March 31, 2021. As against this, net assets of the subsidiary company as on March 31, 2021 is Rs. 1,16,111.12 lakhs (excluding
outstanding balance of unsecured loan from the Company). In view of this, the Company has carried out an evaluation of the subsidiary company’s financial
performance after taking into account the future projections and expected future cash flows. Based on such evaluation, the management is of the view that there is
no impairment in the value of investments and the unsecured loans given to the subsidiary Company.

In 2009, the Company had given sub debt to ADHPL amounting to Rs. 46,380 lakhs at market interest rate and this sub debt was classified as Loans on transition
to Ind AS based on intention of the parties at that point of time. Subsequent to the year end, on May 12, 2021, the Company and ADHPL have mutually agreed to
modity the terms of repayment of sub debt of Rs. 31,780 lakhs and accumulated interest of Rs. 23,395.89 lakhs on total debt as follows:

Interest on sub debt of Rs. 31,780 lakhs out of total sub debt of Rs. 46,380 lakhs will be Nil from April 01, 2020. At the discretion of ADHPL, ADHPL can repay
Rs. 31,780 lakhs and Rs. 23,395.89 lakhs out of distributable profits of ADHPL and can be paid only after making dividend payments to the equity shareholders or
as per the agreement signed between the Company, ADHPL and IFC,

Based on the above modification, the Company has derecognized the loan asset and accumulated interest receivable and transferred the balances to investment in
subsidiary and presented under “Deemed Equity Investment.” The waiver of interest and modification of terms of the sub debt are not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company considering the parent and subsidiary relationship.

The balance sub debt amounting to Rs. 14,600 lakhs carry interest rate of 9.55% per annum.
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36 Financial risk management and objective policies

(a)

(L)

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. It is the Company’s
policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which are summarized below:

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk
include loans and borrowings, deposits. The company is exposed to interest rate risk on variable rate long term borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

(i) Interest Risk Exposure

The exposure of the company's borrowings to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Variable rate borrowings 3,593.61 3,703.22
Iixed rate borrowings 4,666.48 10,958.25
Total 8,260.09 14,661.47

(ii) Sensitivity
Profit/loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. The table below summarises the
impact of increase and decrease of profit after tax on change in interest rate on floating rate debt. The analysis is based on the assumption that
interest rate changes by 25 basis points with all other variable held constant. The fluctuation in interest rate has been arrived at on the basis of
average interest rate volatility observed in the outstanding loans as on March 31, 2021 and March 31 , 2020.

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Effect on Profit if Interest Rate - decrease by 25 basis points 228 9.45
Effect on Profit if Interest Rate - increases by 25 basis points (2.28) (9.45)

IT  Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
company is not exposed to any foreign currency risk as there is no material transactions in foreign currency. Hence, no further disclosure is required under
this section.

111 Price risk
The company is not exposed to any price risk as there is no investment in equities outside the Company and the company doesn’t deal in commodities.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial
institutions, unsecured loan to subsidiary company and other financial instruments.
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To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial conditions, current economic trends, and
analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of assets and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis through each reporting period

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
(i) Financial assets to which loss allowance is measured using lifetime /12 months Expected Credit Loss (ECL) as on March 31, 2021,

(Rs. in Iakhs)

As at March 31,2021 As at March 31, 2020
Financial assets to which loss
allowance is measured using
lifetime/ 12 months Expected credit Gross. Expected credit Carryl_ng al.nount Gross Carrying |Expected credit Carryl-ng m.nount
loss (ECL) Carrying loss net of impairment Amonnt loss net of impairment
Amount provision provision
Long term loans and advances to 14,600.00 ; 14,600.00 46,380.00 . 46,380.00
Subsidiary Company
Loan to Employees 3111 - 3111 51.24 - 51.24
Advance for Bara Banghal project 6,801.84 3,741.84 3,060.00 6,801.84 3,741.84 3,060.00
p
Advance recoverable from HPSEBL 1,863.14 - 1,863.14 1,866.92 - 1,866.92
Intergs.t accrued on loan given to ) ) ) 20.606.17 3 29.606.17
subsidiary company
Trade receivables 534.42 - 534.42 431.90 - 431.90
Cash and Cash Equivalents 238.81 - 238.81 1,181.24 - 1,181.24
Bank Balance 2,095.18 - 2,095.18 30.18 - 30.18
Interest accrued on bank deposit 15.12 - 15.12 9.30 - 9.30
Security deposit 4.02 - 4.02 4.02 - 4.02

The Company is in the power generation sector, The Company on the basis of its past experience and industry practice is confident on realizing.all of its dues from
its custoiners.
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(a)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligation on time or at a reasonable price. The Company's treasury
department is responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by
senior management. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity position through rolling, forecast on the basis of expected cash flows. To maintain
liquidity the Company has maintained loan covenants as per the terms decided by the lenders.

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual

undiscounted payments:

(Rs. in lnkhs)

As at March 31, 2021 Less than 12 12 months to 3 More than 3 years Total
months years

Borrowings 1,205.02 2,410.05 4,645.02 8,260.09

Trade payables 290.97 - - 290.97

Sundry deposit 35.97 - - 35.97

Interest accntuefi bu.[ 119t due on loan 194 ) A 1.94

from financial institution

(Rs, in likhs)

As at March 31, 2020
s at Marc Less than 12 12 months to 3 More than 3 years Total
months years

Borrowings 434,55 3,461.12 10,765.80 14,661.47
Trade payables 211.08 - - 211.08
Sundry deposit 28.78 - - 28.78
I}ltereit accr'uec.i bL!t n(‘)t due on loan 378 , B 3.78
from financial institution

37 Canital management

(2) Risk management

The Company's objective when managing capital are to:

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern , so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(ii) maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt

Company makes continuous efforts to optimise its cost of capitat as during 2020-21 and 2019-20 company makes arrangements with its lenders to re-structure its
borrowings which reduce the cost of capital of borrowing for the company.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net Debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents)

Divided by

Total equity (as shown in balance sheet)

The gearing ratios were as follows:

(Rs. in Iakhs)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Net Debt 8,021.28 13,480.23
Total Equity 128,446.68 128,252.21
Net Debt to Equity Ratio 0.06 0.11
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38 Financial instruments- accounting classification and fair value measurement

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Fair value Amortised . .
Particulars through Profit | Fair value cost Fair val Fall)r (\)'::ltue t:;‘ough Fair value ATE;?:e?nCOSt Fair val
and loss through OCI| (Carrying alr value rotit and foss through OCI ying MEEEE
account amount
account amount
Long term loans and
advances to Subsidiary - - 14,600.00 14,600.00 - 46,380.00 46,380.00
Company
Loan to Employees - - 3111 31.11 - 51.24 51.24
rovancs for Hara - -] 3,06000 3,060.00 3 3,060.00 3,060.00
Banghal project
AvaRCEITecOSEble - - 1.863.14 1,863.14 = 1,866.92 1,866.92
from HPSEBL A i e A
Interest accrued on loan
given to subsidiary - - - - 29,606.17 29,606.17
company
Trade receivables = E 534.42 534.42 % 431.90 431.90
Fash and Cash - - 238.81 238.81 . 1.181.24 1,181.24
Equivalents
Bank Balance - - 2,095.18 2,095.18 - 30.18 30.18
Inter